
AGENDA

Port Freeport
Port Commission
Special Meeting
Thursday, April 11, 2024, 8:30 am - 3:00 pm
In Person & Videoconference - Administration Building - 1100 Cherry Street - Freeport

This meeting agenda with the agenda packet is posted online at www.portfreeport.com

The meeting will be conducted pursuant to Section 551.127 of the Texas Government Code titled "Videoconference Call." A
quorum of the Port Commission, including the presiding officer, will be present at the Commissioner Meeting Room located
at 1100 Cherry Street, Freeport, Texas. The public will be permitted to attend the meeting in person or by videoconference.
The videoconference is available online as follows:

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88261821485?pwd=TkRxVmpHWlEwUXEzMnowd2dyQTlwUT09
Meeting ID: 882 6182 1485
Passcode: 809037

Dial by your location
• 1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
Meeting ID: 882 6182 1485
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kbCPSiKvJr

CONVENE OPEN SESSION in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.001, et. seq., to review and consider
the following:

1.

Invocation.2.

Pledge of Allegiance: U.S. Flag & Texas Flag3.

Roll Call.4.

Safety Briefing.5.

Call to identify and discuss any conflicts of interest that may lead to a Commissioner abstaining from voting on any posted
agenda item.

6.

Public Comment. (Public comment on any matter not on this Agenda will be limited to 5 minutes per participant and can be
completed in person or by videoconference)

7.

Public Testimony.  (Public testimony on any item on this Agenda will be limited to 5 minutes per agenda item to be
addressed per participant and can be completed in person or by videoconference. The participant shall identify in advance
the specific agenda item or items to be addressed)

8.

EXECUTIVE SESSION in accordance with Subchapter D of the Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code Section
551.001, et. seq., to review and consider the following:

9.

Under authority of Section 551.074 (Deliberation of Personnel Matters) for discussion regarding:A.

Deliberation regarding the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties of a public officer or
employee, including but not limited to:  Executive Director/CEO.

1.

RECONVENE OPEN SESSION to review and consider the following:10.

Discuss and consider action resulting from Executive Session.11.

Conduct a Planning Workshop for Port Freeport regarding the following:12.

Introductory Remarks.A.

http://www.portfreeport.com
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88261821485?pwd=TkRxVmpHWlEwUXEzMnowd2dyQTlwUT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kbCPSiKvJr


Review of the following Port Policies:B.

2.1 Commission Officers and Organization
2.4 Executive Director/CEO
2.5 Press Releases/Statements of Official Viewpoint
2.7 Legislative Action
2.8 Legal Defense for Commissioners
2.9 To Be Deleted (June 8, 2023 Commission Action) 
3.4 Conflicts of Interest

Port-owned lots in City of Freeport.C.

Update on RFP process for Market Assessment.D.

RECONVENE EXECUTIVE SESSION in accordance with Subchapter D of the Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code
Section 551.001, et. seq., to review and consider the following:

13.

Under authority of Section 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney):A.

Consultation with attorney under Government Code Section 551.071(1) (to seek or receive attorney's advice on
pending or contemplated litigation).

1.

Consultation with attorney under Government Code Section 551.071(2) (to seek or receive attorney's advice on
legal matters that are not related to litigation).

2.

Under authority of Section 551.087 (Economic Development Negotiations or Incentives):B.

To discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental body has received
from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay or expand in or near the territory
of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic development
negotiations.

1.

Under authority of Section 551.072 (Deliberation of Real Property Matters) for discussion regarding:C.

The potential exchange, lease or value of real property located at Port Freeport, including but not limited to the
real property located at and contiguous to Berths 1, 2, 5, 6, 7 and 8.

1.

The potential exchange, lease, or value of real property located at Port Freeport, including but not limited to the
Expansion Area and Parcels 19, 26, 27, 31, 34 and 35.

2.

Under authority of Section 551.076 (Deliberation of Security Matters) for discussion regarding:D.

Discussion regarding issues related to the deployment, or specific occasions for implementation of security
personnel or devices or security audit and services.

1.

Under authority of Section 551.074 (Deliberation of Personnel Matters) for discussion regarding:E.

Deliberation regarding the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties of a public officer or
employee, including but not limited to:  Executive Director/CEO.

1.

RECONVENE OPEN SESSION to review and consider the following:14.

Continue Workshop for Port Freeport for the following:15.

Safety Update.A.

Operations Update.B.

Capital Projects Update.C.

Environmental, Social, Governance & Sustainability Update.D.

Update on RFP process for Website Redesign.E.

Adjourn.16.



The Port Commission does not anticipate going into a closed session under Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code at this meeting for any 
other items on the agenda, however, if necessary, the Port Commission may go into a closed session as permitted by law regarding any item on the 
agenda. 

With this posted notice, Port Commissioners have been provided certain background information on the above listed agenda items.  Copies of this 
information can be obtained by the public at the Port Administrative offices at 1100 Cherry Street, Freeport, TX. 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________

Phyllis Saathoff, Executive Director/CEO 
PORT FREEPORT 

Participation is welcomed without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, disability or family status.  In accordance with Title II of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, persons with disabilities needing reasonable accommodations to participate in 
this proceeding, or those requiring language assistance (free of charge) should contact the Executive Assistant no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior 
to the meeting, at (979) 233-2667, ext. 4326, email: bevers@portfreeport.com. 

La participación es bienvenida sin distinción de raza, color, religión, sexo, edad, origen nacional, discapacidad o situación familiar. De acuerdo con el 
Título II de la Ley de Estadounidenses con Discapacidades y la Sección 504 de la Ley de Rehabilitación, las personas con discapacidades que necesiten 
adaptaciones razonables para participar en este procedimiento, o aquellas que requieran asistencia lingüística (sin cargo), deben comunicarse con el 
Asistente Ejecutivo a más tardar cuarenta -ocho (48) horas antes de la reunión, al (979) 233-2667, ext. 4326, correo electrónico: 
bevers@portfreeport.com. 

mailto:bevers@portfreeport.com
mailto:bevers@portfreeport.com


PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
COMMISSION OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION                               SECTION 2.1  

   

        
Effective Date:   6/13/11       ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18   ●    Supersedes:  1/25/01    ●    Page 1 of 3   

ORGANIZATION 
 
The officers of the Port Commission shall consist of a Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary, and 
Assistant Secretary to be elected by the Commissioners from and among their number. 
 
The Chairman will preside over all regular and special meetings of the Port Commission and may 
vote on all matters brought before the Commission. 
 
In the absence of the Chairman, the Vice Chairman shall preside as Chairman unless the duly-
elected Chairman designates a duly-elected Commission member to preside in his stead. 
 
The Secretary shall keep the permanent records of all proceedings and transactions of the 
Commission and shall see that notices are duly given in accordance to the law. 
 
In the absence of the Secretary, the Assistant Secretary shall perform the duties of the secretary. 
 
Individual Commissioners should not attempt to direct or control management or management’s 
recommendations, request special activities or otherwise create demands on management or Port 
contractors except through the direction and/or approval of the full Commission.    
 
TERMS OF OFFICES 
 
The offices of Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary, and Assistant Secretary shall be for a term of 
two years, said officers to be elected by a simple majority of the quorum of the Port Commission. 
 
No officer may succeed himself in the next succeeding officer electionserve more than one two-
year term, unless the officer first is elected to and serves only a partial term, or the officer retires 
from serving as an officer for a full two-year term before serving again as an officer for a full two-
year term., but may be again elected to the same office after retiring for one, two-year term. 
 
If for any reason the office of any officer is vacated during the term for which such officer is 
elected, the remaining members of the Port Commission shall, at the next scheduled regular 
meeting, elect a new officer to fulfill the unexpired term, which unexpired term will not be 
considered as a full term and such Commissioner shall be eligible for re-election to serve a full 
two-year term to such office. 
 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
The election of officers will be held by the Port Commission at the first regular meeting on the 
first month following the regular election of Commissioners.The first meeting after each general 
election the board canvases the general votes, declares winners and any new commissioners take their 
seat. Once any new commissioners are seated, the commission elects its new slate of officers. Per policy, 
no officer holder may hold the same office for more than one consecutive term. 
 



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
COMMISSION OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION                               SECTION 2.1  

   

        
Effective Date:   6/13/11       ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18   ●    Supersedes:  1/25/01    ●    Page 2 of 3   

All Port Commission officer elections shall follow the procedures set forth in Robert’s Rules of 
OrderPort Freeport’s Election Policy, Rules of Order, and the Rules of Order Resource, as may be 
amended from time to time and which are incorporated by reference for all purposes herein. will 
be followed for all Port Commission officer elections. 
 
Each newly-elected officer shall assume the duties of his office immediately upon election by the 
Port Commission. 
 
ADVISORY COMMITTEES 
 
FORMATION AND FUNCTION 
 
The Commission shall have five standing advisory committees - the Finance and Audit Advisory 
Committee, the Strategic Capital Planning Advisory Committee, the Operations Advisory, Security 
and Safety Committee, and the Personnel Committee and the Security and Safety Advisory 
Committee.  Each standing advisory committee shall consist of the Chairman of the Port Commission, 
serving as an ex officio member (but only in place of an absent committee member), a committee 
chairman and at least two other members of the Port Commission. The committee chairman and other 
committee members will be appointed by the Chairman of the Port Commission.  The Chairman of 
the Port Commission additionally may appoint such ad hoc committees as deemed appropriate to 
facilitate the business of the Commission. Such ad hoc committees shall exist until the completion of 
their assigned duties or as otherwise determined by the Chairman of the Port Commission. Unless 
otherwise specified by the Commission, all committees shall be advisory in nature without any 
authority to control public the business of the Port Commission.  The role of a committee shall merely 
be to report submit findings, share reports, and make recommendations to the Commission findings 
on any given matter for consideration of by the Commission along with its report or recommendation 
to the Commission.  Management’s Port Management shall be responsibileity with respect to 
committees is to for providinge Committee members with documentation, information, and data, and 
recommendations related to for Committee agenda items, along with Management’s 
recommendation.   

 
FINANCE AND AUDIT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 
Primary responsibilities include reviewing of all financial documents pertaining to the operation of 
the Port, such as including, but not limited to, the annual budget, the annual report, and investment 
and other financial policies, as presented by staff and makinge appropriate related recommendations 
to the full Port Commission.  Further, the Committee will provide oversight of the Port Commission's 
business risk assessment, its grant activity, its internal control structure, and the review of the annual 
audit plan. Moreover, tThe Committee will shall be responsible for meeting with the external auditor 
to discuss audit plans and procedures, any significant anticipated audit problems anticipated, any 
changes in accounting principles, and reviewing all results of the audit.   
This Committee will also review financing plans for certain projects pertaining to port operations and 
projects for and make recommendations to the full Port Commission. 
 



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
COMMISSION OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION                               SECTION 2.1  

   

        
Effective Date:   6/13/11       ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18   ●    Supersedes:  1/25/01    ●    Page 3 of 3   

STRATEGIC CAPITAL PLANNING ADVISORY COMMITTEE (formally the Capital 
Committee) 
   
Primary responsibilities include the review of all projects involving Port properties, to 
includeincluding, but not limited to, leases, marine and other operating contracts, conveyance of 
easements, and professional services agreements and budgets related to Port Improvement and 
Maintenance and &Rehabilitation projects and makinge appropriate related recommendations to the 
full Port Commission.  The Committee will also review management's development and subsequent 
implementation of the Port’s Business and Master Plans to include marketing, capital, operating and 
financial planning elements.  Additionally, the Committee will review all long-term operating and 
lease agreements as well as proposed changes to the Port’s Tariff ensuring they are consistent with 
the Port’s Master Plan and consistent with returns levels recommended by the Finance and Audit 
Committee 
 
OPERATIONS, SECURITY AND SAFETY ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 
Primary responsibilities include the review of all Port equipment matters relating to programs, 
policies, practices and compliance as they pertain to the operations, safety and security of the Port’s 
cyber systems, facilities, equipment, harbor complex and navigational channel., rolling stock, and 
information technology or otherwise, which involve the essential to the daily operation of the Port, 
This shall include a review of including the purchase, lease or sale of equipment and the declaration 
and disposal of surplus items and makinge appropriate related recommendations to the full Port 
Commission.  The Committee, through the Port’s management, will coordinate with external safety 
and security organizations to ensure the integrity of the established maritime security zone, its 
operation and related public safety. The Operations Committee shall also include the review contracts 
related to Port security and make recommendations to the full Port Commission on those contracts. 
The Committee will also serve as the Commission’s official forum to review and evaluate all 
violations of the Port’s Tariff safety provisions as directed and share its findings and 
recommendations to the full Commission. The Committee will also annually review new or renewal 
stevedore license applications.  This Committee, through a needs assessment program, will review all 
proposed additions, alterations or relocations of facilities that are directly involved in operational 
matters.  
 
PERSONNEL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 
Primary responsibilities are include tothe review of staffing needs requested by management, review 
revised compensation and benefit packages for Port personnel as submitted by management, and 
review the Executive Port Director's performance and contract and makinge appropriate related 
recommendations regarding such matters to the full Port Commission.  Additionally, the Committee 
will periodically review existing general Port Commission policies, except as otherwise assigned, and  
will propose new policies and recommendations accordingly to the full Port Commission any changes 
thereto.   
The Committee will also serve as the Commission’s official forum to review and evaluate all 
personnel grievances that have been or can be appealed beyond the level of the Port Executive 



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
COMMISSION OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION                               SECTION 2.1  

   

        
Effective Date:   6/13/11       ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18   ●    Supersedes:  1/25/01    ●    Page 4 of 3   

Director/CEO and to share its findings and recommendations report back to the full Commission its 
findings and recommendations. 
 
SECURITY AND SAFETY ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 
Primary responsibilities shall include the review of matters relating to the programs, policy, practices 
and compliance as they pertain to the safety and security of the Port’s cyber systems, facilities, harbor 
complex and navigational channel.  The Committee through the Port’s management will coordinate 
with external safety and security organizations to ensure the integrity of the established maritime 
security zone, its operation and related public safety.  The committee will review all procurements of 
safety and security equipment and services.  The Committee will also serve as the Commission’s 
official forum to review and evaluate all violations of the Port’s Ttariff safety provisions as directed 
and report backshare its findings and recommendations to the full Commission its findings and 
recommendations. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCESGS COMMITTEE 
 
Primary responsibilities shall include the review of assessment of the Port’s framework 
governance mechanisms and policies and practices in relations to its ability to effectively 
manage itsthe  environmental,  and social, and governance impacts of the Port’s operations, 
engineering, design and construction, procurement and financial activities.   The Committee 
will also periodically review the Port’s sustainability report and any related metrics. The 
Committee will also review ESG projects and services The Committee shallwill share its 
findings and recommendations to the full Commission. 
 
ADDITIONAL OR OTHER ADVISORY COMMITTEE FUNCTIONS 
 
In addition to the duties of the committees as described above, any committee may consider any other 
matter which shall be referred to it by the Chairman or by the any other member of the Port 
Commission.  Committees may fix their own rules of procedure and may meet where and as provided 
by such rules, or by direction of the Commission.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
COMMISSION OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION                               SECTION 2.1  

   

        
Effective Date:   6/13/11       ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18   ●    Supersedes:  1/25/01    ●    Page 5 of 3   

 
 
 
 
Exhibit A 
 
Election of Officers  
Policy:  
The first meeting after each general election the board canvases the general votes, declares 
winners and any new commissioners take their seat. Once any new commissioners are seated, 
the commission elects its new slate of officers. Per policy, no officer holder may hold the same 
office for more than one consecutive term.  
Procedure:  
I I. General. The incumbent Chair shall preside over the Meeting at which the election 
takes place, and shall preside over the election itself, until all open offices have been voted 
upon and filled. Once the election has been completed, the incumbent Chair shall cede office 
and the newly elected Chair shall assume office.  
 
All eligible Commissioners shall be subject to election for the then open offices. The current 
office holder is excluded from holding the same office for the coming term as he or she held 
during the previous two-year term.  
I II. Order of Operation. Generally, elections shall be held in accordance with the order of 
operation found in this Section. (1) Recusal. If a Commissioner does not wish to hold a specific 
office, that Commissioner must recuse himself or herself from consideration for that office prior 
to any vote being made for that specific office. Recusing oneself from consideration for a 
specific office does not then preclude that Commissioner from consideration for another office. 
After hearing recusals, any Commissioner can then bring forth a vote for the respective office.  

I (2) Elections. After recusals have been declared, voting may occur. All eligible Members 
of the Port Commission, not to include those Members who have recused themselves, shall be 
considered for each open office. All Port Commission Members shall be required to vote by 
written ballot with individual ballots to be provided to the Members so that they may write-in 
their selection for the office being considered at that time. This process shall be repeated, 
office-by-office, until all open offices have been filled. i. Order of Open Positions to be 
Considered. The Chair shall be the first office considered for election, with the election process 
being repeated for each office until all offices have been filled from the shrinking pool of 
eligible Members. Office elections shall be held, in succession, one-by-one, in the following 
order: 1. Chair  
I 2. Vice-Chair  
I  
I  



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
COMMISSION OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION                               SECTION 2.1  

   

        
Effective Date:   6/13/11       ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18   ●    Supersedes:  1/25/01    ●    Page 6 of 3   

I  
01/12/2023  
 



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
COMMISSION OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION                               SECTION 2.1  

   

        
Effective Date:   6/13/11       ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18   ●    Supersedes:  1/25/01    ●    Page 7 of 3   

 
I 3. Secretary  
I 4. Assistant Secretary  
I  

I ii. Candidates. All eligible Members of the Port Commission, not to include those 
Members who have recused themselves, shall be considered for each open office. Even if 
there is only one candidate for each office, the Members of the Port Commission must 
nevertheless vote for that office.  
I  
I (3) Tallying; Results. Upon the completion of each election for each open office, staff 
shall collect the ballots, tally the vote, and announce the winner for that specific office. The 
Member receiving the simple majority vote wins the seat for that office and shall not be 
eligible for consideration of any other open office. i. Tie Vote. In cases of a tied vote, 
meaning that two or more candidates have received the same number of votes, a vote shall 
be taken again. In cases of a second tied vote, the tie shall be broken and the office filled 
through the drawing of lots, meaning that the names of the candidates receiving the same 
number of votes shall be written on individual pieces of paper and one shall be selected at 
random (e.g. picked out of a hat). The candidate whose name was drawn shall then fill the 
position then being considered.  

I ii. No Simple Majority Vote Received. In cases when no candidate receives a simple 
majority vote, a run-off election shall occur between the two candidates receiving the most 
votes. This run-off election shall occur in a manner similar to that of the regular election for 
the office then being considered with the exception that the only candidates to be 
considered shall be those two candidates receiving the most votes for that position in the 
regular election.  
I  
01/12/2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
COMMISSION OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION                               SECTION 2.1  

   

        
Effective Date:   6/13/11       ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18   ●    Supersedes:  1/25/01    ●    Page 8 of 3   

 
 
 
 
 
 
Exhibit B 
 
PORT FREEPORT RULES OF ORDER  
Adapted from Rosenberg’s Rules of Order (Revised 2011)  
Parliamentary procedures provide a framework within which a governmental entity may 
propose, amend, approve, or defeat matters to the regulating body. While not required, the 
Port Commission of Port Freeport believes that the adoption of these Port Freeport Rules of 
Order (these “Rules”) will help facilitate Meetings of the Port Commission, making such 
Meetings more efficient and providing security against procedural deficiencies while ensuring 
compliance with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code (i.e., the Texas Open Meetings 
Act). These Rules do not affect the legality of any item passed on any agenda. These Rules may 
be amended from time-to-time, upon action of the Port Commission, but should always be 
found to be based upon the following pillars:  
1. These Rules should establish order. The first purpose of these Rules is to establish a 
framework for the orderly conduct of Meetings.  
 
2. These Rules should be clear. Simple rules lead to wider understanding and participation. 
Complex rules create two classes: those who understand and participate; and those who do not 
fully understand and do not fully participate.  
 
3. These Rules should be user friendly. That is, these Rules must be simple enough that the 
public is invited into the Port Commission and feels that it has been able to adequately observe 
the process.  
 
4. These Rules should enforce the will of the majority while protecting the rights of the 
minority. The ultimate purpose of these Rules is to encourage discussion and to facilitate 
decision making by the Port Commission. In a democracy, majority rules. These Rules must 
enable the majority to express itself and fashion a result, while permitting the minority to also 
express itself, but not dominate, while fully participating in the process.  
 
ESTABLISHING A QUORUM  
Sec. 1.01 Establishing a Quorum.  
(a) A quorum is the minimum number of Port Commissioners who must be present at a meeting 
for business to be legally transacted.  
 



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
COMMISSION OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION                               SECTION 2.1  

   

        
Effective Date:   6/13/11       ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18   ●    Supersedes:  1/25/01    ●    Page 9 of 3   

(b) A quorum is four Port Commissioners (or, one more than half the number of total Port 
Commissioners) unless otherwise specified or reduced because of a legal conflict of interest.  
 
Sec. 1.02 Absence or Loss of a Quorum.  
(a) If the Port Commission has less than a quorum of Port Commissioners physically present for 
a Meeting of the Port Commission, the Port Commission cannot transact business.  
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
------------------------------------------------ Rules of Order – Port Freeport 2 of 8  
 



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
COMMISSION OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION                               SECTION 2.1  

   

        
Effective Date:   6/13/11       ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18   ●    Supersedes:  1/25/01    ●    Page 10 of 3   

 
(b) If the remaining Commissioners do not equal four (4), a quorum shall be considered lost if a 
Port Commissioner departs from the Port Commission Meeting or leaves the room in which the 
Port Commission Meeting is being held.  
 
(c) A Commissioner who is attending via video is not considered present for establishing a 
quorum but may participate and vote in all Port Freeport business. If a member appearing by 
video is no longer visible and able to be heard, the Port Commission Meeting will be paused for 
a reasonable period of time to attempt to re-establish the connection. If the connection is not 
re-established after a reasonable period of time, the Port Commission Meeting will continue 
with those Commissioners in attendance.  
 
(d) If a quorum is lost, the Port Commission loses its ability to transact business until and unless 
a quorum is reestablished.  
 
ROLE OF THE CHAIR  
Sec. 2.01 General.  
The Chair of the Port Commission is charged with applying these Rules at all Meetings of the 
Port Commission. The Chair shall make the final ruling on these Rules every time the Chair 
states an action. All decisions by the Chair shall be final unless overruled by or appealed 
through simple majority of the Port Commission itself. The Chair has the full right to participate 
in the debate, discussion, and decision-making of the Port Commission.  
Sec. 2.02 Agenda Item Discussion.  
A meeting of the Port Commission is governed by that Meeting’s Agenda. The Chair of the Port 
Commission leads the Meeting and guides the Port Commission through the Agenda. Each 
Agenda Item may be discussed, considered, or acted upon as follows. In the following order, 
the Chair shall:  
(a) Clearly announce the Agenda Item number and clearly state what the Agenda Item subject 
is. Generally, while Agenda Items should be heard in the order in which they appear in the 
Agenda, the Chair shall have the ability to call forward certain Agenda Items, out of order, upon 
his or her own authority for the sake of efficiency, clarity, or public participation.  
 
(b) Invite public comments or, if appropriate, at a formal meeting, open the public meeting for 
public input. At the conclusion of public comments, the Chair should announce that public input 
has concluded. Only for a public meeting, public input is sought at the beginning of the 
meeting.  
 
(c) Announce the format, as outlined below, that will be followed in considering that Agenda 
Item.  
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
------------------------------------------------ Rules of Order – Port Freeport 3 of 8  



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
COMMISSION OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION                               SECTION 2.1  

   

        
Effective Date:   6/13/11       ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18   ●    Supersedes:  1/25/01    ●    Page 11 of 3   

 



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
COMMISSION OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION                               SECTION 2.1  

   

        
Effective Date:   6/13/11       ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18   ●    Supersedes:  1/25/01    ●    Page 12 of 3   

 
(d) Invite the appropriate person or persons to report on the Agenda Item, including the 
provision of a recommendation.  
 
(e) The Chair may ask members of the Port Commission if they have any technical questions of 
clarification or items for discussion before seeking a Motion.  
 
(f) Invite a Motion and a second to the Motion, then announce the name of the member who 
makes the Motion and  
 
the name of the Port Commissioner who seconds the Motion.  
(g) Make sure the Port Commissioners understand the Motion either by (1) asking the maker of 
the Motion to repeat it, (2) repeating the Motion, or (3) asking the Port Secretary to repeat the 
Motion.  
 
(h) Invite discussion of the Motion by the Port Commission or, if there is no desired discussion, 
announce that the Port Commission will vote on the Motion.  
 
(i) Take a voice vote or a roll call vote at the discretion of the Chair.  
 
(j) Announce the result of the vote and what action, if any, the Port Commission has taken.  
 
MAKING AND RESPONDING TO MOTIONS  
Sec. 3.01 Motions.  
Most Motions are can be subject to discussion and debate. The Chair may invite a Motion in 
one of three ways:  
(a) Inviting the Port Commissioners to make a Motion.  
 
(b) Suggesting a Motion to the Port Commissioners.  
 
(c) Making the Motion.  
 
Sec. 3.02 Simple Majority; Super Majority.  
The Port Commission consists of six Port Commissioners. For purposes of calculating both a 
simple majority and a super majority, the entirety of the Port Commission shall be considered. 
As such, a simple majority of the Port Commission consists of four of the six Port 
Commissioners, no more and no less, even in consideration of an abstention or absence. A 
super majority of the Port Commission consists of five of the six Port Commissioners, no more 
and no less, even in consideration of an abstention or absence. -------------------------------------------
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
----- Rules of Order – Port Freeport 4 of 8  



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
COMMISSION OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION                               SECTION 2.1  

   

        
Effective Date:   6/13/11       ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18   ●    Supersedes:  1/25/01    ●    Page 13 of 3   

 



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
COMMISSION OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION                               SECTION 2.1  

   

        
Effective Date:   6/13/11       ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18   ●    Supersedes:  1/25/01    ●    Page 14 of 3   

Sec. 3.03 Counting Votes.  
(a) Absence. The absence of a Port Commissioner shall not be counted toward a quorum of the 
Port Commission but nevertheless said absence shall not reduce the number of affirmative 
votes needed to pass a motion.  
(b) Abstention. Should a Port Commissioner abstain from a vote required by law, then the 
majority vote required shall never be less than four (4) votes, provided that any abstention not 
required by law shall be counted as a vote against the matter under consideration. In 
accordance with Section 171.004 of the Local Government Code, in the event that there are 
more than two (2) abstentions as required by law, then all Port Commissioners having such 
legal conflicts shall not be required to abstain from further participation in the matter, as a 
majority of the Port Commission is then composed of persons who have similar interests in the 
same official action.  
(c) Tied Vote. In the event of a tie, a Motion always fails since an affirmative vote of at least four 
(4) Port Commissioners is required to pass any Motion unless otherwise provided herein.  
(d) Other Voting Requirements. In all cases except otherwise provided herein, the minimum 
number of Port Commissioners required to vote for a Motion shall be four (4) Commissioners. 
In cases of vacancies on or appointments to the Port Commission, the minimum number of Port 
Commissioners required to vote for an appointment to fill a vacancy on the Port Commission 
shall be three (3) Commissioners.  
 
Sec. 3.04 Making a Motion.  
A Motion may be made through a two-step process: (1) the Chair should recognize the Port 
Commissioner making the Motion and (2) the Port Commissioner makes the Motion by 
preceding the Port Commissioner’s desired approach with the words, “I move . . .”  
Sec. 3.05 Basic Motions.  
(a) There are two Motions that are the most common. These Motions are subject to the free 
and open debate of the Port Commission, require a simple majority, and include: 1. The Basic 
Motion. The Basic Motion is one that puts forward a decision for Port Commission’s 
consideration (e.g., “I move that we create a five-member committee to plan and put on our 
annual fundraiser.”).  

2. The Motion to Amend. A Motion to Amend takes the Basic Motion that is before the Port 
Commission and seeks to change it in some way. If a Port Commissioner wants to change a 
Basic Motion that is before the Port Commission, that Port Commissioner would move to 
amend it (e.g., “I move that we amend the motion to have a 10-person committee.”).  
 
 
(b) If any confusion as to the classification of a Motion arises, the decision as to how to classify 
a Motion is left to the Chair.  
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
------------------------------------------------ Rules of Order – Port Freeport 5 of 8  



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
COMMISSION OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION                               SECTION 2.1  

   

        
Effective Date:   6/13/11       ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18   ●    Supersedes:  1/25/01    ●    Page 15 of 3   

 



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
COMMISSION OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION                               SECTION 2.1  

   

        
Effective Date:   6/13/11       ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18   ●    Supersedes:  1/25/01    ●    Page 16 of 3   

Sec. 3.06 Amendment to the Original Motion.  
In the discussion of a pending Motion, a change to the Motion may be desirable. When that 
happens, the Port Commissioner who has the floor may say, “I want to suggest an amendment 
to the motion.” The Port Commissioner then suggests the amendment, and if the maker of the 
original Motion. and the Port Commissioner who seconded the Motion pending on the floor 
accepts the friendly amendment, that then becomes the pending Motion on the floor. If either 
the maker or the Port Commissioner seconding rejects the proposed friendly amendment, then 
the proposer can formally move to amend.  
Sec. 3.07 Multiple Motions Before the Body.  
There can be up to two motions on the floor at the same time. The Chair may reject a third 
motion until the Chair has resolved the two pending motions on the floor. When there is more 
than one motion on the floor (after motions and seconds) at the same time, the vote should 
proceed first on the last motion that is made, with a Motion to Amend a Basic Motion being 
heard prior to discussion and consideration of the Basic Motion to be amended.  
As an example, assume that the first Motion made is a Basic Motion to “have a five-member 
committee to plan and put on our annual fundraiser.” This is the first Motion. During the 
discussion of this Motion, a Port Commissioner might make a second Motion to “amend the 
Motion to have a 10-member committee, not a five-member committee to plan and put on our 
annual fundraiser.” The proper procedure would include:  
1. The Chair would first consider the last Motion on the floor (i.e., the Motion to Amend). The 
discussion and debate would focus strictly on the amendment. If the Motion to Amend passed, 
the Chair would then move to consider the Basic Motion – the first Motion – as amended. If the 
Motion to Amend failed, the Chair would then move to consider the Basic Motion in its original 
format, not amended.  
 
2. Lastly, the Chair would consider the first Motion that was placed on the floor (i.e., the Basic 
Motion). The Basic Motion would either be in its original format or, if amended, would be in its 
amended format. The question on the floor for discussion and decision would be whether a 
committee should plan and put on an annual fundraiser.  
 
3.08 Failed Original Motion  
If a Motion fails for either a lack of a second or is not supported by the majority of the 
Commissioners voting, then a new Motion may be made by another Commissioner and the 
required procedures for such a Motion shall be followed.  
Sec. 3.09 Motions Not Subject to Debate.  
A Port Commissioner may make one or more of the following Motions, which shall not be 
subject to debate and on which the Chair must immediately call for a vote of the Port 
Commission: -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
------------------------------------------------------------------ Rules of Order – Port Freeport 6 of 8  
 



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
COMMISSION OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION                               SECTION 2.1  

   

        
Effective Date:   6/13/11       ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18   ●    Supersedes:  1/25/01    ●    Page 17 of 3   

 
(a) Motion to Adjourn. The Port Commission may adjourn if there is no objection made to 
adjournment. Upon such objection, a Motion to Adjourn requires a simple majority vote. If 
passed, this motion requires the Port Commission to immediately adjourn to its next scheduled 
Meeting.  
 
(b) Motion to Recess. This Motion requires the Port Commission to take an immediate recess. 
The Chair shall determine the length of the recess. It requires a simple majority vote.  
 
(c) Motion to Fix the Time to Adjourn. If passed, this Motion requires the Port Commission to 
adjourn the Meeting of the Port Commission at a specific time set in the Motion (e.g., “I move 
we adjourn this meeting at midnight.”). It requires a simple majority vote.  
 
(d) Motion to Postpone. This Motion, if passed, requires the discussion of the Agenda Item to be 
halted and an Agenda Item to be placed on “hold.” The Motion does not have to contain a 
specific time at which the Agenda Item can come back to the Port Commission (e.g., “I move we 
postpone this item.”) . The postponed Agenda Item could then be brought back as an Agenda 
Item at a later Meeting without requiring an additional Motion to do so. A Motion to Postpone 
requires a simple majority vote.  
 
(e) Motion to Limit Debate (or, Motion to Call the Question). Instead of requiring formal action, 
when a Port Commissioner makes a Motion to Limit Debate, the Chair may treat such a Motion 
as a request to either move forward with the pending Motion on the floor if no Port 
Commissioner wishes to discuss the Agenda Item further or, if one member of the Port 
Commission wishes to discuss the pending Motion, the Chair should treat the Motion to Limit 
Debate as a formal Motion. When such a Motion is made, the Chair should ask for a second, 
stop debate, and vote on the Motion to Limit Debate. The Motion to Limit Debate requires a 
simple majority vote of the Port Commission. 1. A Motion to Limit Debate may include a time 
limit (e.g., “I move we limit debate on this agenda item to 15 minutes.”). Even with a time limit, 
it requires a majority vote.  
 
 
(f) Motion to Object to Consideration of an Agenda Item. This Motion is not debatable and, if 
passed, precludes the Port Commission from even considering an Agenda Item. It requires a 
super majority vote.  
 
Sec. 3.10 Motions Requiring a Super Majority.  
Motions requiring a super majority concern action that effectively cuts off the ability of a 
minority of the Port Commission to take an action or discuss an Agenda Item. Motions requiring 
a super majority include: ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
COMMISSION OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION                               SECTION 2.1  

   

        
Effective Date:   6/13/11       ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18   ●    Supersedes:  1/25/01    ●    Page 18 of 3   

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rules of Order – Port Freeport 7 
of 8  
 



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
COMMISSION OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION                               SECTION 2.1  

   

        
Effective Date:   6/13/11       ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18   ●    Supersedes:  1/25/01    ●    Page 19 of 3   

 
(a) Motion to Close Nominations. When choosing officers of the Port Commission, nominations 
are in order either from a nominating committee or from the floor of the Port Commission 
itself. A Motion to Close Nominations effectively cuts off the right of the minority to nominate 
officers.  
 
(b) Motion to Object to the Consideration of an Agenda Item. See Sec. 3.09(f) of these Rules.  
 
(c) Motion to Modify or Suspend the Rules. This Motion allows the Port Commission to modify 
or suspend these Rules for a particular purpose.  
 
(d) Motion to Adopt or Modify Policy. This Motion allows the Port Commission to adopt or 
modify the policies of Port Freeport.  
 
3.11 Motion to Reconsider.  
(a) A Port Commissioner may make a Motion to Reconsider, subject to passage by a simple 
majority, so long as: 1. The Motion to Reconsider was made at the Meeting where the Agenda 
Item was first voted upon. A Motion to Reconsider made at any other time shall be deemed 
untimely; and  

2. The Motion to Reconsider is made only by a Port Commissioner who voted for the prevailing 
side on the original motion. A Port Commissioner who voted in the non-prevailing side and who 
attempts to make a Motion to Reconsider shall be ruled out of order.  
 
 
(b) If the Motion to Reconsider passes, then the original matter is back before the Port 
Commission, and a new Basic Motion is in order. The matter may be discussed and debated as 
if it were on the floor for the first time.  
 
COURTESY AND DECORUM  
Sec. 4.01 General.  
These Rules are meant to create an atmosphere that allows business to be performed 
efficiently and fairly. It is the Port Commission’s responsibility to maintain common courtesy 
and decorum. The debate and discussion of the Port Commission should focus on the Agenda 
Item presented not the personalities of the Port Commission itself. The Chair has the right to 
cut-off any discussion that is too personal, too loud, or too crude. ---------------------------------------
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
--------- Rules of Order – Port Freeport 8 of 8  
 



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
COMMISSION OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION                               SECTION 2.1  

   

        
Effective Date:   6/13/11       ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18   ●    Supersedes:  1/25/01    ●    Page 20 of 3   

Sec. 4.02 Interrupting the Speaker.  
Generally, the speaker should not be interrupted, unless a Port Commissioner wishes to make 
the following:  
(a) Point of Privilege. Upon making a “point of privilege,” the Chair should ask the interrupter to 
state his or her point. Appropriate points of privilege relate to anything that would interfere 
with the normal comfort of the Meeting (e.g., the room may be too hot or too cold).  
 
(b) Point of Order. The Chair should ask the interrupter to state his or her point. Appropriate 
points of order relate to anything that would be considered appropriate conduct of the Meeting 
(e.g., if the Chair moved on to a vote on a Motion that permits debate without allowing that 
discussion or debate).  
 
(c) Appeal. If the Chair makes a ruling that a Port Commissioner disagrees with, that Port 
Commissioner may appeal the ruling of the Chair. If the Motion is seconded, and after debate, if 
it passes by a simple majority vote, then the ruling of the Chair is deemed reversed.  
 
(d) Calls for Orders of the Day. If a Port Commissioner has drifted from the Agenda, such a call 
may be made. It does not require a vote, and when the Chair discovers that the Agenda has not 
been followed, the Chair simply reminds the Port Commission to return to the Agenda Item 
properly before them. If the Chair fails to do so, the Chair’s determination may be appealed.  
 
(e) Withdraw a Motion. During debate and discussion of a Motion, the maker of the Motion on 
the floor, at any time, may interrupt a speaker to withdraw his or her Motion from the floor. 
The Motion is immediately withdrawn, although the Chair may ask the person who seconded 
the Motion if he or she wishes to make the Motion, and any other Port Commissioner may 
make the Motion if properly recognized.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
COMMISSION OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION                               SECTION 2.1  

   

        
Effective Date:   6/13/11       ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18   ●    Supersedes:  1/25/01    ●    Page 21 of 3   

Exhibit C 
 

 
 



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
COMMISSION OFFICERS AND ORGANIZATION                               SECTION 2.1  

   

        
Effective Date:   6/13/11       ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18   ●    Supersedes:  1/25/01    ●    Page 22 of 3   

 
 
(Corresponding Practices & Procedures - Sections 2.1, 4.1) 



 PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR/CEO                                     SECTION 2.4  

   

        
Effective Date:   10/1/18    ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18    ●     Supersedes:  3/27/14    ●    Page 1 of 1   
  

EMPLOYMENT 
 
The Port Commission shall employ an Executive Director/CEO who shall be the chief executive 
officer of the Port. 
 
The Executive Director/CEO shall serve at the pleasure of the Port Commission. 
 
The Executive Director/CEO shall report regularly to the Port Commission on the business being 
conducted by his/her office. 
 
ASSISTANTS AND OTHER EMPLOYEES 
 
The Executive Director/CEO may have such assistants and other employees as the Port 
Commission may authorize. 
 
All employees of the Port shall be under the supervision of the Executive Director/CEO with the 
Chief Financial Officer, Director of Engineering, Director of Operations, Director of Business 
and Economic Development, Public Affairs Manager and Executive Assistant reporting directly 
to the Executive Director/CEO and all other employees reporting through their immediate 
supervisors to the Executive Director.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY  MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
PRESS RELEASES/STATEMENTS OF OFFICIAL VIEWPOINT       SECTION 2.5  

   

        
Effective Date:   5/24/12    ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18    ●    Supersedes:  6/13/11     ●    Page 1 of 1   
 

Official press releases shall be approved by the Chairman of the Port Commission or the 
Executive Port Director/CEO, or their designee. Copies of all press releases will be electronically 
sent to Port Commissioners prior to the time they are distributed to the media.  Otherwise, 
statements made by employees or Commissioners shall be considered as personal statements 
which do not necessarily represent the official viewpoint or position of the Port or Port 
Commission. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 (Corresponding Practices & Procedures – Section 9.1) 



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY  MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
LEGISLATIVE ACTION            SECTION 2.7  

   

        
Effective Date:   9/16/10    ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18     ●      Supersedes:  n/a      ●       Page 1 of 1   
  

The staff of Port Freeport is directed to seek Commission approval prior to requesting any 
legislative action on either a local, state or federal level if the said legislation is for the benefit of 
Port Freeport.  This approval includes formal signing onto a bill, writing a letter of support or 
opposition or initiating the drafting of legislation, but does not include supporting any legislative 
action sponsored by the Texas Ports Association or the AAPA.  The Executive Port 
Director/CEO will continue to have the authority to approve routine requests for funding of 
federal initiatives which include but are not limited to appropriations requests for maintenance 
dredging of Freeport Harbor, Security Grant requests and federal study funding.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

 
___________________________________________________             ____________________ 
PORT COMMISSION OF PORT FREEPORT 
LEGAL DEFENSE          SECTION 2.8  

   

        
Effective Date:   9/22/16   ●    Date Last Reviewed:  11/8/18    ●      Supersedes:  8/13/15    ●     Page 1 of 1   
  

It is the intent of the Port to protect its Port Commissioners from defense expense and legal liability 
through the purchase of appropriate public officials liability insurance, and such other liability 
insurance as the Port obtains and maintains in force and effect, including the payment of any 
deductible thereof.   
 
It is the express intent of the Port to protect its Port Commissioners to the fullest extent allowed 
by Texas law for liabilities or legal expense arising from conduct (including acts or omissions) 
that reasonably appear while acting in the capacity of a Port Commissioner in good faith. 
 
In the event of an investigation, legal claim, demand, lawsuit, arbitration, administrative 
proceeding or any other civil legal proceeding against a Commissioner, the Port may reimburse a 
Commissioner’s legal expenses incurred related to said actions, until such time the above 
mentioned liability policies enter into the defense.  The reimbursement as well as reimbursement 
for payment of deductible expenses may take place only after an action is completed and the 
Commission’s assessment of causation of liability.   
 
The Port shall have sole authority to select legal counsel for a Commissioner and as may be 
permitted by the insurance policy then in effect.    
 
On an annual basis, staff shall review the scope and coverage limits associated with the 
aforementioned insurance coverage, and make recommendations to the Port Commission as 
necessary.  This will include a review of Port Freeport’s Peer Port Group. 



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

EMPLOYMENT 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST     SECTION 3.4 

__ 
Effective Date:   3/28/19    ●    Date Last Reviewed:  3/28/19     ●      Supersedes:  7/2/14    ●     Page 1 of 10 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION PAGE 

I. Preamble 1 

II. General Policy Considerations 1 

III. Chapter 171 of the Texas Local Government Code.  Regulation of conflicts 2 
of interest of officers of municipalities, counties and other local
governments.

IV. Section 131.903 of the Local Government Code 6 

V. Chapter 39 of the Texas Penal Code.  Abuse of office. 7 

VI. Adoption of Section 572.051 of the Government Code 7 

VII. Confidential Information 8 

VIII. Filing of Disclosure Forms Required by Chapter 176 of the Texas
Local Government Code. 8 

IX. Acceptance of Gifts 10 

X. Modification of Prior Policy 10 

XI. Acknowledgment and Acceptance 10 

Exhibits 

“A” Acknowledgment and Acceptance Form 
“B” Disclosure of Substantial Interest Form 
“C” Texas Ethics Commission Local Government Officer Conflicts Disclosure 

Statement (Form CIS) 
“D” Texas Ethics Commission Conflict of Interest Questionnaire (Form CIQ) 
“E” “Conflicts of Interest” Section for Port Freeport Contracts 

Under Legal Review for Updates/Changes



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

EMPLOYMENT 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST     SECTION 3.4 

__ 
Effective Date:   3/28/19    ●    Date Last Reviewed:  3/28/19     ●      Supersedes:  7/2/14    ●     Page 2 of 10 

Conflict of Interest Policy 

I. Preamble

The volume and complexity of relationships between governmental entities and non-
governmental business organizations have grown substantially in recent years.

 This statement of Port Freeport (“Port”) policy has been prepared to outline the Port’s
approach to identifying and evaluating potential conflict of interest issues for
Commissioners, officers and employees and to assist in carrying out the shared
responsibility of addressing conflict of interest issues.  To this end all Port
Commissioners, officers and employees are required by this Conflict of Interest policy to
avoid conflicts of interest in their relationships with outside organizations, unless these
can be managed in accordance with this policy.  The purpose of this policy on Conflicts
of Interest is to provide guidelines for those relationships with outside organizations that
will help to assure the primacy of integrity and to delineate the bounds of acceptable
conduct.

The term Conflict of Interest refers to situations in which financial or other personal
considerations may directly and significantly affect or have the appearance of directly
and significantly affecting a covered individual’s professional judgment in exercising any
Port duty or responsibility.  The danger of a conflict of interest is that it represents an
incentive for bias, a bias which influences decision making based on one’s personal
interest as opposed to the most objective decision.

II. General Policy Considerations

A Port Commissioner, officer or employee may be considered to have a conflict of
interest when the Commissioner, officer or employee or a member of the
Commissioner’s, officer’s or employee’s family, have a financial or non-financial interest
in an organization, entity or activity that also involves the Port.  The Port regards all
conflicts of interest involving financial or non-financial interests as potentially
problematic and, therefore requires close scrutiny.  The intent of this policy is not to
suggest that every conflict of interest jeopardizes the integrity of the activity of the Port,
but the intent is to establish a process under which the Port systematically reviews any
potential conflict of interest in order to ensure ethical conduct in the Port’s daily
operations.

The Port intends to require compliance with all applicable state laws as well as this
policy to ensure that the Port’s Commissioners, officers and employees do not engage in
activities that have the potential to directly or indirectly:

• negatively affect or compromise the Port’s interests; or

Under Legal Review for Updates/Changes



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

EMPLOYMENT 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST     SECTION 3.4 

__ 
Effective Date:   3/28/19    ●    Date Last Reviewed:  3/28/19     ●      Supersedes:  7/2/14    ●     Page 3 of 10 

• compromise objectivity in carrying out the responsibilities of the Commissioners,
officers or employees of the Port; or

• otherwise compromise the performance of Port responsibilities.

III. Chapter 171 of the Local Government Code

A. Chapter 171 of the Local Government Code prohibits a local public official from
participating in a vote on a matter involving a business entity or real property in
which an official has a substantial interest if it is reasonably foreseeable that an
action on the matter would confer an economic benefit on the business entity or
real property.  A local public official within Chapter 171 is:

A member of the governing body or another officer, whether elected, 
appointed, paid or unpaid, of any district (including a school district), 
county, municipality, precinct, central appraisal district, transit authority or 
district, or other local governmental entity who exercises responsibilities 
beyond those that are advisory in nature. 

A business entity within Chapter 171 means:  a sole proprietorship, partnering, 
firm, corporation, holding company, joint-stock company, receivership, trust, or 
any other entity recognized by law. 

As a higher level of transparency than may be required by law, each 
Commissioner shall complete the Acknowledgement and Acceptance Form 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” bi-annually coinciding with Commissioner 
elections.   

B. A local public official has a “substantial interest” if the following is applicable,
to-wit:

1. If a local public official of the Port owns ten percent (10%) or more of the
voting stock or shares of a business, the local public official must file
with the official record keeper of the Port, before a vote or decision on
any matter involving the business entity, an affidavit stating the nature
and extent of the interest and shall abstain from further participation in
the matter if the Port’s action on the matter will have a special economic
effect on the business entity that is distinguishable from the effect on the
public.

2. If a parent, spouse, child, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law or
daughter-in-law of a local public official of the Port owns ten percent
(10%) or more of the voting stock or shares of a business, the local public
official must file with the official record keeper of the Port, before a vote

Under Legal Review for Updates/Changes



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

EMPLOYMENT 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST     SECTION 3.4 

__ 
Effective Date:   3/28/19    ●    Date Last Reviewed:  3/28/19     ●      Supersedes:  7/2/14    ●     Page 4 of 10 

or decision on any matter involving the business entity, an affidavit 
stating the nature and extent of the interest and shall abstain from further 
participation in the matter if the Port’s action on the matter will have a 
special economic effect on the business entity that is distinguishable from 
the effect on the public. 

3. If a local public official of the Port owns ten percent (10%) or more of
the fair market value of a business, the local public official must file with
the official record keeper of the Port, before a vote or decision on any
matter involving the business entity, an affidavit stating the nature and
extent of the interest and shall abstain from further participation in the
matter if the Port’s action on the matter will have a special economic
effect on the business entity that is distinguishable from the effect on the
public.

4. If a parent, spouse, child, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law or
daughter-in-law of a local public official of the Port owns ten percent
(10%) or more of the fair market value of a business, the local public
official must file with the official record keeper of the Port, before a vote
or decision on any matter involving the business entity, an affidavit
stating the nature and extent of the interest and shall abstain from further
participation in the matter if the Port’s action on the matter will have a
special economic effect on the business entity that is distinguishable from
the effect on the public.

5. If a local public official of the Port owns $15,000.00 or more of the fair
market value of a business, the local public official must file with the
official record keeper of the Port, before a vote or decision on any matter
involving the business entity, an affidavit stating the nature and extent of
the interest and shall abstain from further participation in the matter if the
Port’s action on the matter will have a special economic effect on the
business entity that is distinguishable from the effect on the public.

6. If a parent, spouse, child, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law or
daughter-in-law of local public official of the Port owns $15,000.00 or
more of the fair market value of a business, the local public official must
file with the official record keeper of the Port, before a vote or decision
on any matter involving the business entity, an affidavit stating the nature
and extent of the interest and shall abstain from further participation in
the matter if the Port’s action on the matter will have a special economic
effect on the business entity that is distinguishable from the effect on the
public.

Under Legal Review for Updates/Changes



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

EMPLOYMENT 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST     SECTION 3.4 

__ 
Effective Date:   3/28/19    ●    Date Last Reviewed:  3/28/19     ●      Supersedes:  7/2/14    ●     Page 5 of 10 

7. If a local public official of the Port receives funds from a business the
amount of which exceeds ten percent (10%) of the person’s gross income
for the previous year, the local public official must file with the official
record keeper of the Port, before a vote or decision on any matter
involving the business entity, an affidavit stating the nature and extent of
the interest and shall abstain from further participation in the matter if the
Port’s action on the matter will have a special economic effect on the
business entity that is distinguishable from the effect on the public.

8. If a parent, spouse, child, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law or
daughter-in-law of a local public official of the Port receives funds from a
business the amount of which exceeds ten percent (10%) of the person’s
gross income for the previous year, the local public official must file with
the official record keeper of the Port, before a vote or decision on any
matter involving the business entity, an affidavit stating the nature and
extent of the interest and shall abstain from further participation in the
matter if the Port’s action on the matter will have a special economic
effect on the business entity that is distinguishable from the effect on the
public.

9. If a local public official of the Port owns an equitable or legal interest in
real property which interest has a fair market value of $2,500.00 or
more, the local public official must file with the official record keeper of
the Port, before a vote or decision on any matter involving the business
entity, an affidavit stating the nature and extent of the interest and shall
abstain from further participation in the matter if the Port’s action on the
matter will have a special economic effect on the business entity that is
distinguishable from the effect on the public.

10. If a parent, spouse, child, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law or
daughter-in-law of a local public official of the Port owns an equitable or
legal interest in real property which interest has a fair market value of
$2,500.00 or more, the local public official must file with the official
record keeper of the Port, before a vote or decision on any matter
involving the business entity, an affidavit stating the nature and extent of
the interest and shall abstain from further participation in the matter if the
Port’s action on the matter will have a special economic effect on the
business entity that is distinguishable from the effect on the public.

11. The Port Commissioners must take a separate vote on any budget item
specifically dedicated to a contract with a business in which a member of
the Port commission or his or her parent, spouse, child, father-in-law,
mother-in-law, son-in-law or daughter-in-law have an interest as

Under Legal Review for Updates/Changes



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

EMPLOYMENT 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST     SECTION 3.4 

__ 
Effective Date:   3/28/19    ●    Date Last Reviewed:  3/28/19     ●      Supersedes:  7/2/14    ●     Page 6 of 10 

described in paragraphs 1 through 10 above.  The involved Port 
Commissioner may not participate in the separate vote. 

12. A voting violation does not render an action of the Port Commissioners
voidable unless the vote of the Port Commissioner with the conflict of
interest was necessary for the action to pass.

13. A Port Commissioner or other officer of the Port can not act as a surety
for a business that has work, business or a contract with the Port.

14. A Port Commissioner or other officer of the Port can not act as a surety
on any official bond required of a Port Commissioner or other officer of
the Port.

15. A violation of the provisions of Chapter 171 of the Texas Local
Government Code is a Class A misdemeanor punishable by a fine not to
exceed $4,000.00, or confinement in jail for a term not to exceed one
year, or both such fine and confinement.

16. The provisions of Chapter 171 of the Texas Local
Government Code preempt and supercede the common law of conflicts of interest 
as might otherwise apply to Port Commissioners and other Port officials. 

C. Notation of Conflict of Interest for Record

In the event the Port Commission considers a business or real estate matter in
which a Commissioner has filed a Disclosure of Substantial Interest Form, the
Commissioner shall take the following actions during any executive session in
which the matter is discussed: 1) vacate the room in which the meeting is
occurring; 2) abstain from discussion; and 3) if action is to be taken on the matter
in open session, abstain from voting on the matter.  In the case of open session,
such Commissioner: 1) may, but is not required to vacate the room in which the
meeting is occurring; 2) shall abstain from discussion; and 3) shall abstain from
voting on the matter.  In addition, the Chairman, or Vice-Chairman, shall state
for the record said Commissioner will abstain from discussion and voting on the
matter and when applicable, the said commissioner has vacated the room.

IV. Section 131.903 of the Local Government Code

A. Section 131.903 provides that a bank is not disqualified from serving as a
depository for funds of a political subdivision if:

Under Legal Review for Updates/Changes



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

EMPLOYMENT 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST     SECTION 3.4 

__ 
Effective Date:   3/28/19    ●    Date Last Reviewed:  3/28/19     ●      Supersedes:  7/2/14    ●     Page 7 of 10 

1. An officer or employee of the political subdivision who does not have the
duty to select the political subdivision’s depository is an officer, director
or shareholder of the bank; or

2. One or more officers or employees who have the duty to select the
depository are officers or directors of the bank or own or have a
beneficial interest, individually or collectively, in 10 percent or less of the
outstanding capital stock of the bank, if:

(a) A majority of the members of the Commissioners vote to select the
bank as a depository; and

(b) The interested Commissioner, officer or employee does not take
part in the proceeding.

B. Section 131.903 of the Local Government Code prevails over the general conflict
of interest provision of Chapter 171 of the Local Government Code.

V. Chapter 39 Texas Penal Code.  Abuse of office.

1. A Port Commissioner or other officer or employee of the Port commits an
offense if, with intent to obtain a benefit or with intent to harm or defraud another
he or she intentionally or knowingly violates any law relating to his or her office
of employment.  A violation of this provision is a Class A misdemeanor
punishable by a fine not to exceed $4,000.00 or confinement to jail for up to one
year, or both such fine and confinement.

2. A Port Commissioner or other officer or employee of the Port commits an
offense if he or she misuses Port property, services, personnel, or any other thing
of value belonging to the Port that has come into his or her custody or possession
by virtue of his or her office or employment.  According to the law, “misuse”
means to deal with property contrary to (i) an agreement under which the
commissioner, officer, or employee holds the property, (ii) a contract of
employment or oath of office of a commissioner, officer, or employee, (iii) a law
that prescribes the manner of custody or disposition of the property, or (iv) a
limited purpose for which the property is delivered to or received by the
Commissioner, officer or employee.  The penalty for a violation can range from a
Class C misdemeanor to a first-degree felony depending on the value of the thing
misused.

3. Pursuant to the law, a discount or award given for travel, such as frequent flyer
miles, rental car or hotel discounts, or food coupons, are not things of value
belonging to the government for purposes of this section due to the

Under Legal Review for Updates/Changes



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

EMPLOYMENT 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST     SECTION 3.4 

__ 
Effective Date:   3/28/19    ●    Date Last Reviewed:  3/28/19     ●      Supersedes:  7/2/14    ●     Page 8 of 10 

administrative difficulty and cost involved in recapturing the discount or award 
for a governmental entity. 

VI. Section 572.051 of the Government Code

It is the policy of Port Freeport that its Commissioners, officers or employees may not
have a direct or indirect interest, including financial and other interests, or engage in a
business transaction or professional activity, or incur any obligation of any nature that is
in substantial conflict with the proper discharge of the Commissioner’s, officer’s or
employee’s duties in the public interest; and

Whereas, Subchapter C of Chapter 572 sets out standards of conduct and conflict of
interest provisions for state officers and employees and the Port desires to adopt the
provisions of Section 572.051 to apply to its Commissioners, officers and employees.
Section 572.051 is hereby adopted, and this policy provides that a Port Commissioner,
officer or employee should not:

1. accept or solicit any gift, favor, or service that might reasonably tend to influence
the Commissioner, officer or employee in the discharge of official duties or that
the Commissioner, officer or employee knows or should know is being offered
with the intent to influence the Commissioner’s, officer’s or employee’s official
conduct;

2. accept other employment or engage in a business or professional activity that the
Commissioner, officer or employee might reasonably expect would require or
induce the Commissioner, officer or employee to disclose confidential
information acquired by reason of the official position;

3. accept other employment or compensation that could reasonably be expected to
impair the Commissioner’s, officer’s or employee’s independence of judgment in
the performance of the Commissioner’s, officer’s or employee’s official duties;

4. make personal investments that could reasonably be expected to create a
substantial conflict between the Commissioner’s, officer’s or employee’s private
interest and the public interest; or

5. intentionally or knowingly solicit, accept, or agree to accept any benefit for
having exercised the Commissioner’s, officer’s or employee’s official powers or
performed the Commissioner’s, officer’s or employee’s official duties in favor of
another.

VII. Confidential Information

See policy section 3.9.

Under Legal Review for Updates/Changes



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

EMPLOYMENT 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST     SECTION 3.4 

__ 
Effective Date:   3/28/19    ●    Date Last Reviewed:  3/28/19     ●      Supersedes:  7/2/14    ●     Page 9 of 10 

VIII. Filing of Disclosure Forms Required by Chapter 176 of the Texas Local
Government Code.

The Legislature amended the Texas Local Government Code in 2005 to add Chapter 176,
which was amended in 2007 (Disclosure of Certain Relationships with Local
Government Officers; Providing Public Access to Certain Information). Chapter 176
applies to “a county, municipality, school district, junior college district, or other
political subdivision of this state …” and thus applies to the Port.

Chapter 176 requires a “local government office” to file a conflicts disclosure statement.
For Chapter 176 purposes, a “Local Government Officer” is a member of the Port
Commission, the Executive Port Director/CEO, Chief Financial Officer, Controller,
Director of Engineering, Director of Operations, Director of Economic Development,
Director of Protective Services, and any other Employee of the Port who has authority to
approve contracts on behalf of the Port.  The statement is filed on a Local Government
Officer Conflicts Disclosure Statement, (Form CIS) adopted by the Texas Ethics
Commission. A copy of Texas Ethics Commission Form CIS, together with instructions,
is attached as Exhibit “C.” Form CIS is filed with the Port only, and not with the Texas
Ethics Commission.

As detailed by Form CIS and its instructions, Section 176.003 of the Local Government
Code requires a Local Government Officer to disclose, with respect to a person, if:

• “the person enters into a contract with the Port, or the Port is considering entering
into a contract with the person;” and

• “the person has an employment or other business relationship with the Local
Government Officer or a family member of the Local Government Officer that
results in the Local Government Officer or a family member of the Local
Government Officer receiving taxable income other than investment income that
exceeds $2,500 during the 12-month period;” or

the person has given one or more gifts to the Local Government Officer or a family 
member of the Local Government Officer “that have an aggregate value of more than 
$250 in the 12-month period preceding the date the Local Government Officer becomes 
aware that the person” has signed a contract with the Port or that the Port is considering 
doing business with that person.  

A Local Government Officer is not required to file a conflicts disclosure statement in 
relation to a gift accepted by the Local Government Officer if the gift is: 

• given by a family member of the person accepting the gift;

• a political contribution as defined by Title 35, Election Code; or

Under Legal Review for Updates/Changes



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

EMPLOYMENT 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST     SECTION 3.4 

__ 
Effective Date:   3/28/19    ●    Date Last Reviewed:  3/28/19     ●      Supersedes:  7/2/14    ●     Page 10 of 10 

• food, lodging, transportation or entertainment accepted as a guest.

Form CIS is to be filed “not later than 5 p.m. on the seventh business day after the date 
on which the Local Government Officer becomes aware of the facts that require the filing 
of the statement.” 

Chapter 176 also requires certain persons who seek or do business with Port Freeport to 
file a “conflict of interest questionnaire” with Port Freeport on a form promulgated by the 
Texas Ethics Commission. A copy of Texas Ethics Commission Form CIQ is attached as 
Exhibit “D.” 

The Texas Ethics Commission has no enforcement or advisory jurisdiction under Chapter 
176. If a Local Government Officer knowingly violates a requirement of Section
176.003, the violation may be prosecuted as a Class C misdemeanor. However, “[i]t is a
defense to prosecution . . . that the person filed the required [document] not later than the
seventh business day after the date the person received notice of the violation.”

IX. Acceptance of Gifts

(a) The Port Commissioners authorize the Executive Port Director/CEO or Chief
Financial Officer of the Port to receive and accept gifts of property or services (to the
extent allowed by law), for the sole benefit of the Port, so long as the value of such gifts
do not exceed $250.00per year.

(b) Before the Port may accept or receive gifts of property or services over
$250.00per year, the Port Commissioners must approve the acceptance or receipt of such
gifts in a regular or special meeting.

(c) Gifts may not be solicited by any Commissioner, officer or employee of the Port.

X. Modification of Prior Policy

This Amended and Restated Agreement is a modification of the “Conflict of Interest
Policy” approved by the Port Commission on March 23, 2006, which was modified and
replaced by the Amended and Restated Agreement dated October 23, 2008 to reflect the
repeal of Subchapter P of the Water Code, the change of name of Brazos River Harbor
Navigation District of Brazoria County, Texas to Port Freeport, the 2007 amendments to
Chapter 176 of the Texas Local Government Code, and such other changes from the
prior policy made herein.

XI. Acknowledgment and Acceptance

Each Commissioner, officer and employee of the Port shall be required to execute an
Acknowledgment and Acceptance in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A.”

Under Legal Review for Updates/Changes



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

EMPLOYMENT 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST     SECTION 3.4 

_ 
Effective Date:  7/2/14   ●   Date Last Reviewed:  3/28/19   ●   Supersedes:     7/22/10    ●    Exhibit 3.4-A 

EXHIBIT “A” 

Acknowledgment and Acceptance 

By signing below, I,      , acknowledge that I have read the 

Port’s Amended and Restated Conflict of Interest of Policy adopted by the Port and agree to be 

governed by the principles of this policy in addition to any other rules and regulations that may 

govern the activities of said Commissioner, officer or employee.  I further acknowledge that I have 

read and understood the Disclosure Of Substantial Interest In A Business Entity, attached thereto as 

Exhibit B, and will complete, execute and deliver it to the Port before a vote or decision on any 

matter involving a business entity or real property in which I have a “substantial interest.” 

AGREED TO and ACCEPTED on this 
the ____ day of _____________, _____. 

By:_____________________________ 

WITNESS: 

By:_____________________________ 

Under Legal Review for Updates/Changes



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

EMPLOYMENT 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST   SECTION 3.4 

_ 
Effective Date:  7/22/10   ●   Date Last Reviewed:  3/28/19   ●   Supersedes:    11/01/08    ●    Exhibit 3.4-B 

EXHIBIT “B” 

PORT FREEPORT 

DISCLOSURE OF SUBSTANTIAL INTEREST 
IN A BUSINESS ENTITY OR REAL PROPERTY

STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF BRAZORIA 

I, _______________________________, as a Commissioner, officer or Director of Port Freeport 
(“Port”), make this affidavit and hereby on oath state the following:  “I, or a person(s) related to 
me in the first degree of consanguinity or affinity, have a substantial interest in a business entity 
or real property, as provided for in Local Government Code Sections 171.001-171.002, that 
would experience a special economic effect distinguishable from its effect on the public by a 
vote or decision of the Port or in real property for which it is reasonably foreseeable that the 
Port's action will have a special economic effect of the value of the property distinguishable from 
its effect on the public.” 

The business entity or real property is: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

I (or name of relative and relationship) (have/has) a substantial interest in this business entity or 
real property for the following reasons:  (check all that apply). 

[  ] Ownership of 10 percent or more of the voting stock or shares of the business entity. 
[  ] Ownership of 10 percent or more of the fair market value of the business entity. 
[  ] Ownership of $15,000 or more of the fair market value of the business entity. 

Under Legal Review for Updates/Changes



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

EMPLOYMENT 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST   SECTION 3.4 

_ 
Effective Date:  7/22/10   ●   Date Last Reviewed:  3/28/19   ●   Supersedes:    11/01/08    ●    Exhibit 3.4-B 

[  ] Funds received from the business exceed 10 percent of ____________________ gross 
income for the previous year.  (my, his, her) 

[  ] Real property is involved and ______________ (have has) an equitable value or legal 
ownership with a fair market value of at least $2,500.  (I, he, she) 

Upon the filing of this affidavit with the Chairman of the Port Commission, I affirm that I shall 
abstain from participation in any decision involving this business entity or real property, unless 
permitted according to statute. 

Signed this _________ day of _____________________, _____. 

Signature 

Title 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF ____________________ 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, this day personally appeared 
_____________________________ and on oath stated that the above-stated facts are true to the 
best of (his/her) knowledge or belief. 

Sworn and subscribed before me on this ______ day of _________________, ____. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

Under Legal Review for Updates/Changes



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

EMPLOYMENT 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST     SECTION 3.4 

_ 
Effective Date: 11/01/08   ●   Date Last Reviewed:  3/28/19   ●   Supersedes:    7/27/06    ●    Exhibit 3.4-C 

 

Under Legal Review for Updates/Changes



PORT FREEPORT 
POLICY MANUAL 

EMPLOYMENT 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST     SECTION 3.4 

_ 
Effective Date: 11/01/08   ●   Date Last Reviewed:  3/28/19   ●   Supersedes:    7/27/06    ●    Exhibit 3.4-D 

 

Under Legal Review for Updates/Changes



Effective Date: 11/01/08   ●   Date Last Reviewed:  3/28/19   ●   Supersedes:    n/a    ●    Exhibit 3.4-E 

APPENDIX A-1 

STATEMENT OF NO CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. 

_______________ (Proposing Entity) acknowledges that the Port is a governmental authority and, as 
such, the Port is firmly committed to making any business decisions based solely on evaluation of 
offers that the Port believes will provide the Port the best value and greatest return.  Basic business 
integrity dictates that the Port’s business decisions be objective, be in the best interest of the Port, and 
be in no way connected to or influenced by any other relationship.  The undersigned, as a duly 
authorized representative of the Proposing Entity represents, warrants and certifies on behalf of the 
Proposing Entity that (a) Proposing Entity has not directly or indirectly paid, offered, promised to 
pay, contributed, or promised to contribute any money or any other thing of value or benefit 
(including employment, contracts or subcontracts relating to Proposing Entity’s business) to any 
Commissioner, official or employee of the Port, (b) no Commissioner, official or employee of the 
Port has (directly or indirectly) solicited any such payment or contribution, and (c) Proposing Entity 
does not have any Relationship (as that term is hereinafter defined) with any Commissioner, official 
or employee of the Port.  For the purposes of this Contract, a Relationship is defined as (1) a 
Commissioner, official or employee of the Port or an affiliate of a Commissioner, official or 
employee of the Port owns ten percent (10%) of the ownership of the Proposing Entity or ownership 
in the Proposing Entity with a fair market value of $15,000 or more; or (2) a Commissioner, official 
or employee of the Port or an affiliate of a Commissioner, official or employee of the Port has an 
employment or other business relationship with the Proposing Entity that results in taxable income or 
receipt of something of value by a Commissioner, official or employee of the Port or an affiliate of a 
Commissioner, official or employee of the Port; or (3) a Commissioner, official or employee of the 
Port or an affiliate of a Commissioner, official or employee of the Port receives one or more gifts 
from the Proposing Entity that have a total value of more than $250 in one 12-month period.  An 
“affiliate” of a person is (1) a family member of the person, related within the first degree by 
consanguinity or affinity, as defined by Subchapter B, Chapter 573 of the Texas Government Code, 
or (2) an entity owned in whole or in part by the person or by a family member of the person related 
within the first degree by consanguinity or affinity.  The representations, warranties and certifications 
made in this statement are ongoing and will remain in effect for the term of this Contract.  If any of 
the representations, warranties or certifications made by Proposing Entity herein cease to be correct 
during the term of this Contract, and in any event prior to making any payment or contribution to or 
forming a Relationship with a Commissioner, official or employee of the Port, Proposing Entity will 
notify the Port by filing a written statement with the Secretary of the Port Commission through the 
office of the Executive Port Director.  Proposing Entity will be in default under the terms of this 
Contract if (i) any of the representations, warranties or certifications made herein are false or 
misleading in any material respect as of the effective date, (ii) Proposing Entity fails to disclose any 
matter required to be disclosed hereunder, or (iii) Proposing Entity makes a payment or contribution 
to a Commissioner, official or employee of the Port without first disclosing the nature of the payment 
to be made as provided herein. 

Authorized Representative Signature 

Printed Name 

Date 

Under Legal Review for Updates/Changes



Port Freeport Owned Residential Lots in City of Freeport 
Property 1 - Lots Fifteen through Eighteen (15-18), Velasco Townsite, Block Thirty-six (36), City of Freeport, Brazoria 
County, Texas, according to the plat or map thereof duly recorded in Volume 32, Page 14 of the Deed Records of 
Brazoria County, Texas. (Property ID 259901) Per BCAD, 6250 sf but actual 12500 sf. BCAD value $23,440. Using $3.75, 
value would be $46,880.  

Property 2 - Lots Four and Five (4-5), Block Thirty-seven (37), Velasco Townsite, City of Freeport, Brazoria County, Texas, 
according to the plat or map thereof duly recorded in Volume 32, Page 14 the Deed Records of Brazoria County, Texas. 
(Property ID 259907) Per BCAD, 6250 sf valued at $23,440 or $3.75/sf. 

Property 3 - Lots Seven and Eight (7-8), Block Fifty-one (51), Velasco Townsite, City of Freeport, Brazoria County, Texas, 
according to the plat or map thereof duly recorded in Volume 32, Page 14 of the Deed Records of Brazoria County, 
Texas. (Property ID 259984) Per BCAD, 6250 sf valued at $23,440 or $3.75/sf. 

Property 4 - Lot Eleven (11), Block Eighty-seven (87), Velasco Townsite, City of Freeport, Brazoria County, Texas, 
according to the plat or map thereof duly recorded in Volume 32, Page 14, of the Deed Records of Brazoria County, 
Texas. (Property ID 26179) Per BCAD, 3125 sf valued at $11,720 or $3.75/sf. 

Property 5 - Lot One (1), Block Ninety-two (92), City of Freeport, Brazoria County, Texas, according to the duly recorded 
plat or map thereof in the Plat Records of Brazoria County, Texas. (Property ID 209745) Per BCAD, 7000 sf valued at 
$36,750 or $5.25/sf. 

Property 6 - Lot Two (2), Block Ninety-five (95), City of Freeport, Brazoria County, Texas, according to the plat or map 
thereof duly recorded in Volume 2, Page 95 of the Plat Records of Brazoria County, Texas. (Property ID 209791) Per 
BCAD, 7000 sf valued at $36,750 or $5.25/sf. 

Property 7 - Lot Fifteen (15), Block One Hundred Sixteen (116), City of Freeport, Brazoria County, Texas, according to the 
plat or map thereof duly recorded and more particularly described in Volume 1492, Page 792 of the Deed Records of 
Brazoria County, Texas. (Property ID 210012) Per BCAD, 7000 sf valued at $36,750 or $5.25/sf. 

Property 8 - Lot Five (5), Block Six Hundred Twenty-three (623), Velasco Townsite, City of Freeport, Brazoria County, 
Texas, according to the plat or map thereof duly recorded Volume 32, Page 14 of the Deed Records of Brazoria County, 
Texas. (Property ID 260821) Per BCAD, 3125 sf valued at $11,720 or $3.75/sf. 

Property 9 - Lot Six (6), Block Six Hundred Twenty-three (623), Velasco Townsite, City of Freeport, Brazoria County, 
Texas, according to the plat or map thereof duly recorded in Volume 32, Page 14 of the Deed Records of Brazoria 
County, Texas. (Property ID 260822) Per BCAD, 9378 sf valued at $35,170 or $3.75/sf. 

Property 10 - Lot Fourteen (14), Block Seven Hundred Eighty-one (781), of Velasco Townsite, City of Freeport, Brazoria 
County, Texas, according to the plat or map thereof duly recorded in Volume 32, Page 14 of the Deed Records of 
Brazoria County, Texas. (Property ID 261936) Per BCAD, 3128 sf valued at $11,730 or $3.75/sf. 



2024 Quarterly 
Safety Update

Today marks 1923 days
5 years 3 month without 

a time loss injury

Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 1



Back to Basics: 
Minimum requirements of PPE: Class 2 Type R safety 
vests closed toe shoes. 

Safety team continues to attend Pre-Vessel
Tenant Tailgate Meetings. Safety has taken
active role in observation of active operations
and provided vessel safety inspection. On hand
guidance addressing safety assistance.

Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 2



Monthly inspections:
Fire Buggies Emergency Equipment:

Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 3



Daily Monitoring Gas Additive/Transfer line @ parcel 19: 

Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 4



Training 

• Brazosport Safety Council/BCPC Monthly Trainings: Heat Awareness

• Port Ministry Training: Port Safety Requirements explanation of the 
pamphlet and Q & A after.

• Active Shooter Stop the Bleed Training

Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 5



Meeting 

• Quarterly Tenant Meeting 
• Monthly Port  Staff Training: Changed format 

to aid in participation
• Port Ministry Banquet 50 Years
• VW security Team and APS Stevedore 

Welcome packet and responsibilities
• Del Monte Cross Dock project:  construction 

site, met with superintendent about required 
PPE while on site

• Quarterly Tenant Walkabouts

• WGMA Joint Safety Meeting: Upcoming Safety 
Fair/ RORO Rodeo 

Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 6



Meetings New Tenants / Stevedores / Vendors: 

APS Stevedores and Sunstate's Security  Volkswagen ZACKERY  
GATE 12 CONSTRUCTION

Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 7



Investigations and Unsafe Conditions

Once safety is alerted / 
discovers an incident, the 

safety team begins to collect 
information onsite to aid 

with an investigation. 

Below are just some 
samples that have accrued 

this quarter.

Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 8



Amports Sewer Lid

Sewer lid to trailer, Rusted thru will not 
close properly and odor is strong.

Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 9



Chiquita Vessel Container Accident

Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 10



Del Monte 
Yard Construction 

• Notification received from PF Security.
• Del Monte construction yard is not 

marked correctly with construction area 
or keep out signs. 

• Workers were not present, the barricades 
on one side of the location including 
caution tape had been blown over by the 
wind. 

• Safety applied corrective action, righted 
the barrels and reapplies the caution 
tape.

Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 11



Safety: Current Projects

• New Rescue container and training

• Dock 8 edge identification and protection

• Speed limit issue on long straights

• Operation observations

Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 12



New Rescue 
container is 
operational!

All stevedores 
will be 
requested to 
receive training 
on use and 
safety 
protocols.

Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 13



Dock 8 edge identification and prevention

Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 14



Non-TWIC parking 
lot Security 
Credentialing 

• OTR drivers will check-in before entering 
the Port expediting Gate 8 inbound 

Traffic
• This will enable driver to receive 

directions eliminating foot traffic 
crossing FM 1495 to Gate 8.

• Parallel Barricade(s) should be in front of 
check-in booth on either side protecting 

drivers. 

Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 15



Speed limits 
issue

20 MPH

Parcel 19 roadway 
Pete Schaff Rd
Port Road
Turning Basin Rd

Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 16



Parcel 19 Roadway

Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 17



Pete Schaff Blvd.                Turning Basin Rd

Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 18



Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 19



Gate 8 Dole Interchange creating Traffic Congestion: 
Security can not turn OTR  trucks around, OTR trucks who need to 
rescale can not cross to WHS 51 to adjust tandems to come back to 
rescale, Dole trucks waiting on access to interchange must cross 
outbound traffic lane and trucks entering from Dole interchange must go 
around waiting trucks in center lane. 
All unsafe conditions

Solution:
Drive located after CBP scanner and behind the scale house, former 
truck wash, is in direct line with the Dole Interchange; Trucks having to 
exit thru Dole Interchange only  will use this lane. This will remove trucks 
from the center lane causing congestion, safety and security issue. 

Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 20



Port Improvements:
All RR crossing on P-19 are 
clearly marked

Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 21



Relocating signage 
for a better effect 

throughout the 
port.

Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 22



Safety 
Budget: 

• Updated signage at each gate and identifying 
required PPE and no photography.

• Identifying all emergency equipment and 
locations.

• Working on Employee Appreciation Luncheon: 
Hit a milestone with 1923 days (5 years 3 
months) without time loss injury, planning, and 
funding.

• Ensuring adequate funds staying ahead of the 
port growth

• Another set of Automatic Flaggers
• Radar gun for the Safety Vehicle
• Emergency bag with AED and 1st aid supply
• Handheld radios to be able to respond to 

emergency calls/situations.

Agenda Item 15.A.  - Slide 23



Capital Plan Update

April 11, 2024

The information in this presentation contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended. Such statements may involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors that may cause the actual results, 
performance and achievements to be different from future results, performance and achievements expressed or implied by such forward-
looking statements. Readers are cautioned that the actual results could differ materially from those set forth in the forward-looking statements

Agenda Item 15.C.  - Slide 1



PORT FREEPORT
PORT CAPITAL EXPANSION PLAN
Fiscal Year 2024

Strategic Initiatives Milestones
 Freeport Harbor Channel 950,000$        
 Buildout of the Port’s Container Handling Facilities 37,124,000     
 Development of warehousing and OEM distribution 1,440,000       
 Port Infrastructure Support: 13,096,110     

Total 52,610,110$   

Agenda Item 15.C.  - Slide 2


Strategic Obj for memo)

				PORT FREEPORT

				PROPOSED PORT CAPITAL EXPANSION PLAN

				Fiscal Year 2024



				Strategic Initiatives		Milestones		Funding Sources

		Ø		Freeport Harbor Channel 		$   950,000		General Obligation Bonds, Cash or Reserves

		Ø		Buildout of the Port’s Container Handling Facilities		37,124,000		Pledged Revenue Debt, Cash or Reserves

		Ø		Development of warehousing and OEM distribution facilities		1,440,000		Pledged Revenue Debt, Cash or Reserves

		Ø		Port Infrastructure Support:

				  Other		600,000		Cash or Reserves

				  Capital Maintenance		10,526,000		Cash or Reserves

				  Office, computer, IT related		260,500		Cash or Reserves

				  Security Related		1,399,860		Cash or Reserves

				  Vehicles		77,000		Cash or Reserves

				  Operational Equipment		232,750		Cash or Reserves

				Total		$   52,610,110









Strategic Obj

						PORT FREEPORT

						PORT CAPITAL EXPANSION PLAN

						Fiscal Year 2024



						Strategic Initiatives		Milestones		Funding Sources

				Ø		Freeport Harbor Channel 		$   950,000		General Obligation Bonds, Cash or Reserves

				Ø		Buildout of the Port’s Container Handling Facilities		37,124,000		Pledged Revenue Debt, Cash or Reserves

				Ø		Development of warehousing and OEM distribution facilities		1,440,000		Pledged Revenue Debt, Cash or Reserves

				Ø		Port Infrastructure Support:		13,096,110		Cash or Reserves

						Other		600,000		Cash or Reserves

						  Capital Maintenance		10,526,000		Cash or Reserves

						  Office, computer, IT related		260,500		Cash or Reserves

						  Security Related		1,399,860		Cash or Reserves

						  Vehicles		77,000		Cash or Reserves

						  Operational Equipment		232,750		Cash or Reserves

						Total		$   52,610,110









Summary 2024-28

		PORT FREEPORT

		PROPOSED PORT CAPITAL EXPANSION PLAN

		FY 2024 to 2028

														2024-2028

		PROJECT		2024		2025		2026		2027		2028		TOTAL

		VELASCO TERMINAL & RELATED INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT

		Cash Funded		$   1,895,000		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   1,895,000

		Revenue Debt/Cash Funded		-		-		3,000,000		5,000,000		-		8,000,000

		Estimated Grant Application Funded		30,429,000		24,828,000		26,756,500		-		-		82,013,500

		Cranes (2)- Equipment or Revenue Debt Funded		4,800,000		4,800,000		14,400,000		-		-		24,000,000

		Revenue Growth Funded		-		-		-		10,000,000		-		10,000,000

		Subtotal Velasco Terminal & Related Infrastructure		$   37,124,000		$   29,628,000		$   44,156,500		$   15,000,000				$   125,908,500



		OEM / LOGISTICS CENTER

		Cash Funded		1,440,000		6,200,000		-		-		-		7,640,000

		Revenue Debt/Cash Funded		-		-		-		-				-

		Grant Application Funded		-		-		24,000,000		-		-		24,000,000

		Subtotal OEM/Logistics Center		$   1,440,000		$   6,200,000		$   24,000,000		$   - 0				$   31,640,000



		OTHER PROJECTS, M & R, EQUIPMENT

		Cash Funded		12,188,500		2,011,000		699,000		592,000		391,000		15,490,500

		Estimated Grant Application Funded		907,610		1,240,700		88,300		-		-		2,236,610

		Subtotal Other Projects, M & R, Equipment		$   13,096,110		$   3,251,700		$   787,300		$   592,000				$   17,727,110



		CAPITAL CONTRIBUTED TO OTHERS

		Cash Funded		200,000		2,000,000		-		-		-		2,200,000

		General Obligation Debt Funded		-		-		-		-		5,000,000		-

		Revenue Debt/Cash Funded												-

		Funded From Capital Improvement Reserve		750,000		750,000		1,030,000		750,000		750,000		3,280,000

		Subtotal Capital Contributed to Others		$   950,000		$   2,750,000		$   1,030,000		$   750,000				$   5,480,000





		TOTALS

		Cash Funded		15,723,500		10,211,000		699,000		592,000		391,000		27,616,500

		Revenue Debt Plus Cash Flow Funded		-		-		3,000,000		5,000,000		-		8,000,000

		Equipment Lease/Other Debt Funded		4,800,000		4,800,000		14,400,000		-		-		24,000,000

		Grant Funded* (see note below)		31,336,610		26,068,700		50,844,800		-		-		108,250,110

		General Obligation Debt Funded		-		-		-		-		5,000,000		5,000,000

		Funded From Capital Improvement Reserve		750,000		750,000		1,030,000		750,000		750,000		4,030,000

		Revenue Growth Funded		-		-		-		10,000,000		-		10,000,000

				$   52,610,110		$   41,829,700		$   69,973,800		$   16,342,000		$   6,141,000		$   186,896,610





				52,610,110		41,829,700		69,973,800		16,342,000				186,896,610



				-		-		-		-				-

		*Port Freeport Cashflow Portion of Grant		$   12,896,840		$   5,949,500		$   12,689,125						$   31,535,465

		Total Cash Flow or General Reserve		$   28,620,340		$   16,160,500		$   13,388,125		$   592,000		$   391,000		$   59,151,965





graph data

		Estimated Grant Application or already Funded by Grant Programs		$   18,439,770

		Estimated Port Match on Grant Projects		$   12,896,840

		 Equipment Lease/Other Debt Funded		$   4,800,000

		Funded from Capital Improvement Reserve		$   750,000

		Cash Flow or General Reserve Funded		$   15,723,500





graph2



PORT FREEPORT 2024

 CAPITAL BY FUNDING







 Estimated Grant Application or already Funded by Grant Programs 	 Estimated Port Match on Grant Projects 	 Equipment Lease/Other Debt Funded	 Funded from Capital Improvement Reserve 	 Cash Flow or General Reserve Funded 	18439770	12896840	4800000	750000	15723500	



graph

																														note to Mary - deleted zero % so watch next year



PORT FREEPORT 2024

 CAPITAL BY FUNDING



 $31,336,610 	 - 	 - 	 4,800,000 	 - 	 750,000 	 15,723,500 	

 Estimated Grant Application or already Funded by Grant Programs 	 General Obligation Debt Funded 	 Revenue Debt Plus Cash Flow Funded	 Equipment Lease/Other Debt Funded	 Revenue Growth Funded Projects 	 Funded from Capital Improvement Reserve 	 Cash Flow or General Reserve Funded 	31336610	0	0	4800000	0	750000	15723500	



CAPEX (Projects & Summary)

				PORT FREEPORT

				PROPOSED PORT CAPITAL EXPANSION PLAN

				Outyears forecast are subject to change		delete this col

				FY 2024 to 2028



										Proposed										2024-2028						2024-2030

		PRIORITY		PROJECT		2021		2023		2024		2025		2026		2027		2028		TOTAL		2029		2030		TOTAL

				VELASCO TERMINAL & RELATED INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT

				    (Excludes East End Expansion Area)

				VELASCO TERMINAL, Pump Station Intake Channel										3,000,000

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
covering up area with concrete -3 acres of osy		5,000,000

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
per wsp plans decision on moving.  This number is covering/using box culverts.				8,000,000						8,000,000

		2		VELASCO TERMINAL, Phase II Berth 8 		87,055,900		23,000,000												- 0						- 0

		2		VELASCO TERMINAL, Phase II Backland Areas 4 (10 AC)

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
area behind berth 9
Possible Grant Application in future
										26,756,500

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
drainage, 9 high mast poles, water & fire hydrants, 22 inch limestone storage yard grade
CHANGE TO GRANT APPLICATION, txdot WITH CONCRETE
						26,756,500						26,756,500

				VELASCO TERMINAL, Phase III - TBD

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
berth 9																- 0		21,000,000		35,000,000		56,000,000

				VELASCO TERMINAL, Backland Areas 5 Phase II (15 AC)

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
by Gate 14, PAAC recommended $11,565,621 in MIP88 
grant						20,500,000

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
drainage, 16 high mast poles, water and fire hydrants = $9.5M, and associated concrete work = $11M										20,500,000						20,500,000

				VELASCO TERMINAL, Phase III Backland Areas 6 (7 AC)												10,000,000

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
Area 6 ARI Loop
CONCRETE
Includes rail relocation				10,000,000						10,000,000

				VELASCO TERMINAL, Phase III Entrance (North Gate) - Landside Access						250,000

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
2023 PIDP Grant Application
Total Cost $4,635,938
grant ask $3,476,954		4,386,000								4,636,000		70,900,000		73,900,000		149,436,000

				VELASCO TERMINAL, Access Project				350,000

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
GRANT FUNDS  Total project 9,028,938 grant funded 6,228,128.42
rider 37  east end road and back gate road		8,679,000										8,679,000						8,679,000

				VELASCO TERMINAL East 5th Reconstruction

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
TX Dot 2023 Seaport Connectivity Application
Project $4.8 ask $3.6						500,000		4,300,000								4,800,000						4,800,000

				VELASCO TERMINAL, Refrigerated Cross Dock

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
PIDP Grant Application 
60%
						500,000

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
2023 PIODP application
total cost 16,641,900
grant ask 12,481,425		16,142,000								16,642,000						16,642,000

				VELASCO TERMINAL, Perimeter Fencing						95,000										95,000						95,000

		1		VELASCO TERMINAL, Land Acquisitions		2,500,000		7,700,000		1,800,000										1,800,000						1,800,000



				OEM / LOGISTICS CENTER

				PARCEL 14,  Rail Development Phase II

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
Received 2018 CRISI Grant Funding - 

				10,521,050												- 0						- 0

				PARCEL 19,  Rail Development

Mary Campus: Mary Campus
TXDOT Maritime Infra Grant application

				10,521,050						24,000,000						24,000,000						24,000,000

				TRANSIT SHED MODIFICATIONS

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
cut off 100' of end of south side
								6,200,000								6,200,000						6,200,000

				PUMPSTATION 1400 E FLOODGATE

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
FOR VW
 
				10,000

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
for VW - 		1,440,000										1,440,000						1,440,000



				SECURITY RELATED

				GATE 8 - Renovate Building and IT

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
$+20 k for it move etc, wiring 				200,000												- 0						- 0

				Non- TWIC Lot Precheck Gate- Electrical 

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
We have an existing building that was used at Quintana - needs only electrical service
						10,000										10,000						10,000

				EOC Additional Parking						25,000										25,000						25,000

				EOC HVAC Upgrade/replacement						500,000				150,000						650,000						650,000

				Gate 4 Access Road Widening 

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
TXDOT 2023 Seaport Connectivity
Project $1.2 ask $900k						120,000		1,080,000								1,200,000						1,200,000



				OTHER PROJECTS

				Greenbelt with Port Expansion Area Tribute

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
2nd & FM 1495 with Monument

						50,000		200,000								250,000						250,000

				Port Expansion Area Water and Sewer Modifications						500,000										500,000						500,000



				CAPITALIZED MAINTENANCE & REPAIR PLAN

		1		JOINT REPAIRS		20,000		20,000		20,000		20,000		20,000		20,000		20,000		100,000						100,000

		1		RAILROAD TRACK RENOVATIONS		25,000		25,000		75,000

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
Increase - Hull - P14 Maint.
		75,000		75,000		75,000		75,000		375,000						375,000

		1		DOCKS CATHODIC PROTECTION 						6,000,000

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
Berth 1-7
										6,000,000						6,000,000

		1		DOCKS -SHEET PILE REPAIRS						300,000										300,000						300,000

		1		TRENCH DRAIN REPAIRS, VELASCO TERMINAL																- 0						- 0

		1		ASPHALT PAVEMENT REPAIR (Roads.)		200,000		- 0		200,000		200,000		200,000		200,000		200,000		1,000,000						1,000,000

				PORT ROAD OVERLAY																- 0						- 0

				OPERATIONS BUILDING UPGRADE 

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
NEW EXTERIOR, WINDOWS, DOORS 



AL will put in new CARPET

		125,000														- 0						- 0

				MAINTENANCE SHOP REPAIRS

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
reskin front and repair door frames
		100,000														- 0						- 0

				DOLE OFFICE REPAIRS (SPLIT 50/50)		75,000														- 0						- 0

				TRANSFORMER YARD REPLACEMENT						200,000

Board Room: Board Room:
TWO AT DOLE YARD
										200,000						200,000

				FENCE RAZOR WIRE UPGRADE				23,000		31,000		28,000		29,000						88,000						88,000

				PORTWIDE PAVEMENT REPAIRS

Board Room: Board Room:
common area -verify				1,000,000		3,700,000										3,700,000						3,700,000



				FIVE YEAR CAPITAL EQUIP OUTLAY SUMMARY (from detailed schedule)		ERROR:#REF!		603,190		6,165,110		6,448,700		14,713,300		297,000		96,000		27,720,110		- 0		- 0		27,720,110



				CAPITAL CONTRIBUTED TO OTHERS

				POWER & PHONE LINE RELOCATION		300,000														- 0						- 0

		2		FREEPORT HARBOR CHANNEL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT		35,500,000		20,000,000		- 0				- 0		- 0				- 0						- 0

				MAINTENANCE DREDGING 

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
SB -$280,000 every 5 years
FH -$750,000 every year when channel completed
						750,000		750,000		1,030,000		750,000		750,000		4,030,000		750,000		750,000		5,530,000

				DMPA#1 LEVEE RAISE														5,000,000

Mary Campus: Mary Campus
will need for B9
JH to get me $		5,000,000						5,000,000

		1		BERTH 2 & 3 FLOODWALL, Modifications						200,000

tc={19C334EE-9E83-4D8C-94EE-3A83C8718974}: [Threaded comment]

Your version of Excel allows you to read this threaded comment; however, any edits to it will get removed if the file is opened in a newer version of Excel. Learn more: https://go.microsoft.com/fwlink/?linkid=870924

Comment:
    estimate for demo only, not new construction								

Mary Campus: Mary Campus
will need for B9
JH to get me $		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
area behind berth 9
Possible Grant Application in future
		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
berth 9		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
by Gate 14, PAAC recommended $11,565,621 in MIP88 
grant										

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
covering up area with concrete -3 acres of osy		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
per wsp plans decision on moving.  This number is covering/using box culverts.		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
drainage, 9 high mast poles, water & fire hydrants, 22 inch limestone storage yard grade
CHANGE TO GRANT APPLICATION, txdot WITH CONCRETE
		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
drainage, 16 high mast poles, water and fire hydrants = $9.5M, and associated concrete work = $11M		

Board Room: Board Room:
pidp grant application		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
TX Dot 2023 Seaport Connectivity Application
Project $4.8 ask $3.6						

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
2023 PIDP Grant Application
Total Cost $4,635,938
grant ask $3,476,954		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
GRANT FUNDS  Total project 9,028,938 grant funded 6,228,128.42
rider 37  east end road and back gate road		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
PIDP Grant Application 
60%
								2,000,000								2,200,000						2,200,000

				TOTAL		ERROR:#REF!		$   73,973,290		$   52,610,110		$   41,829,700		$   69,973,800		$   16,342,000		$   6,141,000		$   186,896,610		$   92,650,000		$   109,650,000		$   389,196,610





				CapEx Category Summary

				Velasco Terminal		ERROR:#REF!		$   31,050,000		$   37,124,000		$   30,858,000		$   44,156,500		$   15,100,000		$   - 0		$   127,238,500		$   91,900,000		$   108,900,000		$   328,038,500

				OEM / Logistics		- 0		21,052,100		1,440,000		6,200,000		24,000,000		- 0		- 0		31,640,000		- 0		- 0		31,640,000

				Security Related		ERROR:#REF!		524,240		1,399,860		1,400,700		336,300		80,000		- 0		3,216,860		- 0		- 0		3,216,860

				Other		- 0		- 0		550,000		200,000		- 0		- 0		- 0		750,000		- 0		- 0		750,000

				Capital Maintenance		545,000		1,068,000		10,526,000		323,000		324,000		295,000		295,000		11,763,000		- 0		- 0		11,763,000

				Equipment & IT		ERROR:#REF!		278,950		620,250		98,000		127,000		117,000		96,000		1,058,250		- 0		- 0		1,058,250

				Contributed to Others		35,800,000		20,000,000		950,000		2,750,000		1,030,000		750,000		5,750,000		11,230,000		750,000		750,000		12,730,000

				Total		ERROR:#REF!		$   73,973,290		$   52,610,110		$   41,829,700		$   69,973,800		$   16,342,000		$   6,141,000		$   186,896,610		$   92,650,000		$   109,650,000		$   389,196,610



				Targeted Funding Sources

				Estimated Grant Application or already Funded by Grant Programs		ERROR:#REF!		$   11,087,050		$   31,336,610		$   26,068,700		$   50,844,800		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   108,250,110		$   70,900,000		$   73,900,000		$   253,050,110

				General Obligation Debt Funded		35,500,000		20,000,000		-		-		-		-		5,000,000		5,000,000		-		-		5,000,000

				 Revenue Debt Plus Cash Flow Funded		ERROR:#REF!		23,000,000		-		-		3,000,000		5,000,000		-		8,000,000		-		-		8,000,000

				 Equipment Lease/Other Debt Funded		ERROR:#REF!		-		4,800,000		4,800,000		14,400,000		-		-		24,000,000		-		-		24,000,000

				Revenue Growth Funded Projects		-		-		-		-		-		10,000,000		-		10,000,000		21,000,000		35,000,000		66,000,000

				Funded from Capital Improvement Reserve		18,802,450

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
Berth 8 dredging
										

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
Area 6 ARI Loop
CONCRETE
Includes rail relocation		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
GRANT FUNDS 6,228,128.42
PIDP
		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
2023 PIODP application
total cost 16,641,900
grant ask 12,481,425		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
Received 2018 CRISI Grant Funding - 

		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus
TXDOT Maritime Infra Grant application

		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
cut off 100' of end of south side
		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
FOR VW
 
				

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
for VW - 		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
$+20 k for it move etc, wiring 		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
We have an existing building that was used at Quintana - needs only electrical service
		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
TXDOT 2023 Seaport Connectivity
Project $1.2 ask $900k		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
2nd & FM 1495 with Monument

						

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
Increase - Hull - P14 Maint.
		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
Berth 1-7
		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
NEW EXTERIOR, WINDOWS, DOORS 



AL will put in new CARPET

		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
reskin front and repair door frames
		

Board Room: Board Room:
common area -verify						

Board Room: Board Room:
TWO AT DOLE YARD
		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
SB -$280,000 every 5 years
FH -$750,000 every year when channel completed
		

Rob Lowe: Rob Lowe:
reduced to total spend of $2m per 5/19 mtg w/J Hull		-		750,000		750,000		1,030,000		750,000		750,000		4,030,000		750,000		750,000		5,530,000

				Cash Flow or General Reserve Funded		ERROR:#REF!		19,886,240		15,723,500		10,211,000		699,000		592,000		391,000		27,616,500		-		-		27,616,500



				Check		ERROR:#REF!		TRUE												TRUE						TRUE



						ERROR:#REF!		TRUE		TRUE		TRUE		TRUE		TRUE		TRUE		TRUE		TRUE		TRUE		TRUE

				Port Freeport Cash Flow Match Portion of Grants						12,896,840		5,949,500		12,689,125		-		-

				Total Cash Flow or General Reserve						28,620,340		16,160,500		13,388,125		592,000		391,000

				`								`

estimate for demo only, not new construction







CAPEX (Equipment & Other)

		PORT FREEPORT

		CAPITAL OUTLAY SCHEDULE (ITEMS OVER $5,000)

		FY 2024 to 2028



						Proposed										2024-2028						2023-2029

		PROJECT		2023		2024		2025		2026		2027		2028		TOTAL		2029		2030		TOTAL

		COMPUTER EQUIPMENT:

		VDI REFRESH (SERVERS, SWITCHES & TERMINALS)														- 0						- 0

		REFRESH BACKUP SERVERS		26,000												- 0						- 0

		NVR REPLACEMENT (CAMERA STORAGE/SERVER)		45,000												- 0						- 0

		PORT NETWORKING UPGRADES (Switches, UPS, reboot devices, surge protection)		- 0		180,000										180,000						180,000

		AUDIO/VISUAL UPGRADE - BOARD ROOM														- 0						- 0



		COMPUTER SOFTWARE:

		GANTRY CRANE-SHIP PROFILE SYSTEM						230,000								230,000						230,000

		ZPMC CRANE COMPUTER SOFTWARE UPDATE										100,000				100,000						100,000

		MS DYNAMICS FINANCE SOFTWARE UPGRADE				50,000										50,000						50,000



		OFFICE FURNITURE:

		CHAIRS				5,000								5,000		10,000						10,000





		OFFICE EQUIPMENT:

		NETWORK COPIER/SCANNER/PRINTERS		23,350		20,000						40,000		40,000		100,000						100,000

		BADGE PRINTER				5,500						6,000		6,000		17,500						17,500

		PHONE SYSTEM UPGRADE						75,000								75,000						75,000



		EQUIPMENT:

		SHIP TO SHORE GANTRY CRANES (2 UNITS)				4,800,000		4,800,000		14,400,000						24,000,000						24,000,000

		SPARE PARTS FOR GANTRY CRANES						1,000,000								1,000,000						1,000,000

		AIR COMPRESSOR						9,000								9,000						9,000

		WELDING MACHINE										12,000				12,000						12,000

		STEAM CLEANER										12,000				12,000						12,000

		DIAGNOSTIC INDICATOR								8,000						8,000						8,000

		12,000# 4 POST CARLIFT				7,000										7,000						7,000

		TRACTOR		75,000												- 0						- 0

		RAIL CAR COUNTER EQUIPMENT  (2 UNITS)

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
UNITES $25 K - NEEDS ELECTRICAL ETC ALSO
		30,000		35,000										35,000						35,000

		JLG 40' SCISSOR/MAN LIFT (USED)		26,000												- 0						- 0

		AMP BUCKET		5,000												- 0						- 0

		PORTABLE PORT WIDE GENERATOR

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
FEMA/TX Emerg Preparedness
				190,750										190,750						190,750



		SAFETY/SECURITY:

		VIDEO MANAGEMENT UPGRADE				346,860

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
2020 Port Security Grant
		124,700

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
2023 PSGP
		61,300

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
2023 PSGP
						532,860						532,860

		UHF RADIO UPGRADE		173,000												- 0						- 0

		DRONE DETECTION PROGRAM

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
2023 psgp
				36,000		10,000		10,000						56,000						56,000

		GATE ACCESS CONTROL UPGRADE		43,000												- 0						- 0

		TWIC READERS

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
2023 psgp
				39,000		21,000		12,000						72,000						72,000

		TWIC READERS- NON GRANT

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
2023 psgp
				12,000										12,000						12,000

		 PORTWIDE ALERT SYSTEM

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
2023 psgp
		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
UNITES $25 K - NEEDS ELECTRICAL ETC ALSO
				175,000		5,000		5,000						185,000						185,000

		BOAT COLLAR REPLACEMENT				30,000										30,000						30,000

		SECURITY BOAT MOTORS						60,000								60,000						60,000

		ENFORCER CAFS SKID UNIT		13,240		16,000										16,000						16,000

		REMOTE CONTROL MESSAGING SIGN		20,000				20,000								20,000						20,000

		PORTABLE MESSAGING SIGN				10,000				10,000						20,000						20,000

		SUV COMMAND ORGANIZER & CENTER CONSOLE		6,000												- 0						- 0

		EOC AV & VIDEO CONFERENCING UPGRADE		69,000												- 0						- 0

		SECURITY CAMERA REPLACEMENT PROJECT				75,000		75,000		75,000		75,000				300,000						300,000

		PORTABLE TRAFFIC LIGHT				5,000

		RADAR SPEED LIMIT SIGN SOLAR POLE MOUNTED						5,000		5,000		5,000

		PORTABLE RADAR SPEED CONTROL TRAILER SIGN								8,000



		VEHICLES:

		MAINTENANCE TRUCK 										33,000				33,000						33,000

		MAINTENANCE UTILITY VEHICLES		13,600		14,000		14,000		14,000		14,000				56,000						56,000

		OPERATIONS VEHICLE				28,000				28,000						56,000						56,000

		SAFETY VEHICLE								27,000						27,000						27,000

		SECURITY PATROL VEHICLE		35,000		35,000				50,000				45,000		130,000						130,000



		OTHER:

		  FUTURE PORT DEVELOPMENT PLANNING

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
p 37 & 34 OTHERS MITIGATION STUDY ETC.
CONCEPTUAL DESIGN OF AREA USAGE (CUT IN BERTH, BACKLANDS STORAGE)
DETERMINE WHERE WETLANDS ARE ETC.		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
FEMA/TX Emerg Preparedness
				

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
2020 Port Security Grant
		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
2023 psgp
						

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
2023 PSGP
		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
2023 PSGP
		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
2023 psgp
		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
2023 psgp
				50,000										50,000						50,000



		TOTAL		$   603,190		$   6,165,110		$   6,448,700		$   14,713,300		$   297,000		$   96,000		$   27,692,110		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   27,692,110



		CapEx Category Summary

		Security		$   324,240		$   744,860		$   320,700		$   186,300		$   80,000		$   - 0		$   1,331,860		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   1,331,860

		Other:														- 0						- 0

		Computer Equipment		71,000		180,000		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		180,000		- 0		- 0		180,000

		Computer Software		- 0		50,000		230,000		- 0		100,000		- 0		380,000		- 0		- 0		380,000

		Office Furniture		- 0		5,000		- 0		- 0		- 0		5,000		10,000		- 0		- 0		10,000

		Office Equipment		23,350		25,500		75,000		- 0		46,000		46,000		192,500		- 0		- 0		192,500

		Equipment		136,000		5,032,750		5,809,000		14,408,000		24,000		- 0		25,273,750		- 0		- 0		25,273,750

		Vehicles		48,600		77,000		14,000		119,000		47,000		45,000		302,000		- 0		- 0		302,000

		Other 		- 0		50,000		- 0		- 0		- 0		- 0		50,000		- 0		- 0		50,000

		Total		$   603,190		$   6,165,110		$   6,448,700		$   14,713,300		$   297,000		$   96,000		$   27,720,110		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   27,720,110



		Targeted Funding Sources

		Estimated Grant Application or already Funded by Grant Programs		$   216,000		$   787,610		$   160,700		$   88,300		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   1,036,610		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   1,036,610

		 Equipment Lease/Other Debt Funded		- 0		4,800,000		4,800,000		14,400,000		- 0		- 0		24,000,000		- 0		- 0		24,000,000

		Cash Flow or Reserve Funded		387,190		577,500		1,488,000		225,000		297,000		96,000		2,683,500		- 0		- 0		2,683,500







Grant Rev

				PORT FREEPORT

				2023/24 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET



				INTERGOVERNMENTAL (GRANT)  REVENUES SCHEDULE





				AWARDED GRANTS:

																Fiscal Year 2024 Budget

								Total 		Grant 		Port				Grant Revenue		Capital 		Port 		Port 		Port 		Port 		Port 		Operating		Non-Operating

				Grant		Cost Share		Project		Award		Cost Share		Comment		4700-00-1000		Project/Equip		Cost Share 2024		Cost Share 2025		Cost Share 2026		Cost Share 2027		Cost Share 2028		Expense		Expense

				2020 Port Security Grant		75/25		269,860		202,395		67,465				152,145		202,860		67,465										-		-		*

				  Video Managmenet Upgrade

				TX Rider 37 Grant		68/32

				  Velasco Terminal Access				9,028,938		6,228,128		2,800,809				5,901,720		8,679,000		2,800,809														*

				2023 Port Security Grant		75/25

				  Drone Detection Program				56,000		42,000		14,000				27,000		36,000		14,000														*

				  TWIC Readers				72,000		54,000		18,000				29,250		39,000		18,000														*

				  Portwide Alert System				185,000		138,750		46,250				131,250		175,000		46,250														*

				  Video Enhancements				330,000		247,500		82,500				108,000		144,000		82,500														*

				   Internet Backup				63,000		47,250		15,750				35,190				15,750										46,920				*

						Totals		$   10,004,798		$   6,960,023		$   3,044,774		$   - 0		$   6,384,555		$   9,275,860		$   3,044,774										$   46,920		ERROR:#REF!

				FY 2024- Anticipated award

				FEMA Disaster -generator		75/25

				  Portable Generator				190,750		143,063		47,687				143,063		190,750		47,687

				2023 MARAD PIDP Grant

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
rounded numbers
		75/25						-								-												-		 

				  Velasco Terminal North Gate				4,636,000		3,477,000		1,159,000				187,500		250,000		250,000		909,000												*

				  Velasco Terminal Refrigerated Cross Dock				16,642,000		12,481,500		4,160,500				375,000		500,000				4,160,500												*

				2023 TXDOT Maritime Infrastructure Program																-

				  Velasco Terminal Area 5 Backland Development		77/23		20,500,000		11,565,621		8,934,379				11,565,621		20,500,000		8,934,379														**

				2023 TXDOT Seaport Connectivity Program

				  Velasco Terminal East 5th Reconstruction		75/25		4,800,000		3,600,000		1,200,000				375,000		500,000		500,000		700,000												*

				  Gate 4 Access Road Widening Project		75/25		1,200,000		900,000		300,000				90,000		120,000		120,000		180,000												*

				2026 TXDOT Maritime Infrastrure Program		75/25

				  Velasco Terminal Area 4 Concrete Paved				26,756,500		20,067,375		6,689,125												6,689,125										*

				  Parcel 19 Rail Development				24,000,000		18,000,000		6,000,000												6,000,000										*

						Totals		$   98,725,250		$   70,234,559		$   28,490,691		$   - 0		$   12,736,184		$   22,060,750		$   9,852,066		$   5,949,500		$   12,689,125		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0		$   - 0

				Total Grant Related												19,120,739.00		31,336,610.00		12,896,840		5,949,500		12,689,125

				* Multiple Year Project

				**Cost share shown based on originally submitted cost of $15m.





oldCont to Corps 2022

				PORT FREEPORT

				Freeport Harbor Channel Improvement Project



						Port		Corps		Port		Corps		Port		Corps		Port		Corps		Port		Corps		Totals

						2020		2020		2021		2021		2022		2022		2023		2023		2024		2024

		u		Reach 3 Dredging

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
Corps est $29,460,000 JH Est $20 mil minus $8 for Berth 8 equals $12 mil

6-5-19 JH now Corps doing to 46' and Port the incremental to 51' - question costs, Corps doing their portion etc.
		6,400,000

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
est cash 3rd qtr 2020
Fed portion est $19 million		19,000,000																		$   25,400,000

		u		Build PA8 placement area						6,000,000

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
est cash July 2021		6,000,000														$   12,000,000

		u		Reach 2 dredging						26,000,000

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
$50 mil 75/25 split
		37,500,000														$   63,500,000

		u		Portion of  Reach 1										28,800,000		40,890,000										$   69,690,000

		u		Portion of Reach 1 														34,700,000		51,200,000						$   85,900,000

		u		Portion of Reach 1 and Reach 4 																		21,100,000		40,000,000		$   61,100,000

		v		PED Reach 1		250,000				2,000,000				750,000												$   3,000,000

		u		PED Reach 1 		 				1,500,000				1,500,000				1,000,000								$   4,000,000

				TOTALS		6,650,000		19,000,000		35,500,000		43,500,000		31,050,000		40,890,000		35,700,000		51,200,000		21,100,000		40,000,000		$   324,590,000



				General Obligation Debt Funded		6,650,000				35,500,000				31,050,000				35,700,000				21,100,000				130,000,000

				Total		6,650,000		19,000,000		35,500,000		43,500,000		31,050,000		40,890,000		35,700,000		51,200,000		21,100,000		40,000,000		324,590,000



		u		Non- Federal Sponsor - GO Bonds

		v		Work in kind accelerated funding





				GO Bond Cash Flow		$M

				2019 Go Bond Funds		$   35.0

				Reach 3 Dredging, 2020		$   (6.4)

				PED Reach 1, 2020		$   (7.0)

		w		2021 GO Bond Issuance		$   39.2

				Build Placement Area 8, 2021		$   (6.0)

				Reach 2 Dredging, 2021		$   (26.0)

				Reach 1 Dredging, 2022		$   (28.8)

				    Remaining Funds		$   - 0

		w		2022 - 2024 GO Bond Issuance		$   55.8

				2023 - 2024 Dredging Reach 1 & 4		$   (55.8)

				  Project Complete		$   - 0



		w		Future GO Bonds will be issued based on timing needs and the commitment to maintain the current tax rate of $.0401

				Project		Current Cash Flow Timing		Updated Timing @ 4/1/20		J Hull Comments

				Reach 3 Dredging		10/20 - 1/21

				Build PA8 placement area		4/21 - 8/21

				Reach 2 dredging		4/21 - 8/21

				Portion of  Reach 1		2022

				Portion of Reach 1 		2023

				Portion of Reach 1 and Reach 4 		2024

				PED Reach 1 		2020









oldCont to Corps 2020

				PORT FREEPORT

				Freeport Harbor Channel Improvement Project		

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
mary update colors and funding



						Port		Corps		Port		Corps		Port		Corps		Port		Corps		Port		Corps		Totals		Total w/out Levee 

						2020		2020		2021		2021		2022		2022		2023		2023		2024		2024

		w		Reach 3 Dredging

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
Corps est $29,460,000 JH Est $20 mil minus $8 for Berth 8 equals $12 mil

6-5-19 JH now Corps doing to 46' and Port the incremental to 51' - question costs, Corps doing their portion etc.
		6,400,000

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
est cash 3rd qtr 2020
Fed portion est $19 million		19,000,000																		$   25,400,000

		u		Build PA8 placement area						6,000,000

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
est cash July 2021		6,000,000														$   12,000,000

		u		Reach 2 dredging						12,500,000

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
$50 mil 75/25 split
		37,500,000														$   50,000,000

		u		Portion of  Reach 1										28,800,000		40,890,000										$   69,690,000

		u		Portion of Reach 1 														34,700,000		51,200,000						$   85,900,000

		u		Portion of Reach 1 and Reach 4 																		20,000,000		40,000,000		$   60,000,000

		w		PED Reach 1		3,200,000																				$   3,200,000

		u		PED Reach 1 		4,000,000																				$   4,000,000

				TOTALS		13,600,000		19,000,000		18,500,000		43,500,000		28,800,000		40,890,000		34,700,000		51,200,000		20,000,000		40,000,000		$   310,190,000		$   310,190,000



				General Obligation Debt Funded		10,400,000				18,500,000				28,800,000				34,700,000				20,000,000				112,400,000

				Other Funding Sources needed		3,200,000				-				-				-				-				3,200,000

				Total		13,600,000				18,500,000				28,800,000				34,700,000				20,000,000				115,600,000



		u		Non- Federal Sponsor

		v		Federal - not appropriated yet

		w		Advance funded Federal to be credited to Port

				Notes:

				7/25/19 - R Lowe, Updated PED Reach 1 to $10M per discussion with J Hull

				7/25/19 - R Lowe, Updated PED Reach 1 to 60/40 split for year 2020 and assigned PF portion to GO Bonds per discussion w/P Saathoff

				7/25/19 - R Lowe, reduced Portion of Reach 1 and Reach 4 year 2024 spend by $4m to accommodate PED Reach 1 GO spend

				2/26/20 - R Lowe, Mary campus updated estimates and added Corps estimates based on meeting with J Hull

				5/19/20 - R Lowe updated estimates based on meeting with J Hull and P Saathoff

				Project		Current Cash Flow Timing		Updated Timing @ 4/1/20		J Hull Comments

				Reach 3 Dredging		10/20 - 1/21

				Build PA8 placement area		4/21 - 8/21

				Reach 2 dredging		4/21 - 8/21

				Portion of  Reach 1		2022

				Portion of Reach 1 		2023

				Portion of Reach 1 and Reach 4 		2024

				PED Reach 1 		2020







Crane Timing 

		Cranes

		revised 6/16/23

				First set of 2

				$24,000,000

		Final Acceptance -25 mos				5%		$   1,200,000

		substantial comp- 24 mos				15%		$   3,600,000

		Crane on rails-21 mos				20%		$   4,800,000

		comp of fab -18 mos				20%		$   4,800,000

		Comp of design-5 mos				20%		$   4,800,000

		Contract signing				20%		$   4,800,000

		Updated for 2024 Budget $12 mil each						$   24,000,000









Cont to Corps updated 7.20.22

				PORT FREEPORT

				Freeport Harbor Channel Improvement Project



						Port		Corps		Port		Corps		Port		Corps		Port		Corps		Port		Corps		Totals

						2020		2020		2021		2021		2022		2022		2023		2023		2024		2024

		u		Reach 3 Dredging

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
Corps est $29,460,000 JH Est $20 mil minus $8 for Berth 8 equals $12 mil

6-5-19 JH now Corps doing to 46' and Port the incremental to 51' - question costs, Corps doing their portion etc.
		5,920,473

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
est cash 3rd qtr 2020
Fed portion est $19 million		18,000,000																		$   23,920,473

		u		Reach 2 dredging						8,449,667

Mary Campus: Mary Campus:
$50 mil 75/25 split
		25,906,000														$   34,355,667

		u		f Reach 1, 2 and reach 4										43,668,848		73,156,000		60,932,681						77,528,000		$   255,285,529

		v		PED Reach 1										750,000												$   750,000

		u		PED Reach 1 		2,031,682				6,746,649				1,500,000												$   10,278,331

				TOTALS		7,952,155		18,000,000		15,196,316		25,906,000		45,918,848		73,156,000		60,932,681		- 0		- 0		77,528,000		$   324,590,000



				General Obligation Debt Funded		7,952,155				15,196,316				45,918,848				60,932,681				-				130,000,000

				Total		7,952,155		18,000,000		15,196,316		25,906,000		45,918,848		73,156,000		60,932,681		-		-		77,528,000		324,590,000



		u		Non- Federal Sponsor - GO Bonds

		v		Work in kind accelerated funding





				GO Bond Cash Flow		$M

				2019 Go Bond Funds		$   35.0

				Reach 3 Dredging & PED, 2020		$   (5.9)

				PED Reach 1, 2020		$   (2.0)

		w		2021 GO Bond Issuance		$   39.2

				Reach 2 Dredging, 2021		$   (8.5)

				PED, 2021		$   (6.7)

				Reach 1 Dredging, 2022		$   (43.7)

				PED, 2022		$   (2.3)

				    Remaining Funds		$   5.1

		w		2022 - 2024 GO Bond Issuance		$   55.8

				2023 - 2024 Dredging Reach 1 & 4		$   (60.9)

				  Project Complete		$   - 0



		w		Future GO Bonds will be issued based on timing needs and the commitment to maintain the current tax rate of $.0401

				Project		Current Cash Flow Timing		Updated Timing @ 4/1/20		J Hull Comments

				Reach 3 Dredging		10/20 - 1/21

				Build PA8 placement area		4/21 - 8/21

				Reach 2 dredging		4/21 - 8/21

				Portion of  Reach 1		2022

				Portion of Reach 1 		2023

				Portion of Reach 1 and Reach 4 		2024

				PED Reach 1 		2020











1


2


3


4


A


B


C


PORT FREEPORT


PORT CAPITAL EXPANSION PLAN


Fiscal Year 2024




Freeport Harbor Channel 
Improvement Project

Project Construction:
 Reach 3 – Complete 2021
 Reach 2 Widening – Complete 2022
 Reach 2 Bend Easing – Complete 2023
 Reach 2 Deeping – 2023-24 
 Reach 1 Outer ½ - 2023-25 
 Reach 1 Inner ½ - 2023-25 
 Reach 4 – Complete 2023

2025
100th Anniversary 

Widening
Complete

Dry Excavation 
Complete

Project depth – 51 to 56 feet MLLW

Complete 26ft

Agenda Item 15.C.  - Slide 3



Port Freeport has been awarded over $22 million in funding from TxDOT for 
projects inside and outside of the port’s main terminal.  
Rider 37
• $6.2 Million - Velasco Terminal Access Project 

• Construct a truck queuing area, widen and repave roads in the Expansion Area, East 
2nd Street access, and a new gate access for Velasco Container Terminal.

• 12/14 – Approved contract with Zachery Construction (Gate 12)

Seaport Connectivity Program
• $3.8M - East 5th Street Reconstruction Project
• $1.0M - Gate 4 Access Road Widening Project

[4/25 – Resolutions Committing Matching Funds East 5th and Gate 4]

Maritime Infrastructure Program
• $11.6 million – Velasco Terminal Area 5

• Concrete pave 15 acres on Velasco Container Terminal. 
• 1/25 – Approved PSA with LJA Engineering
• 3/28 – Approved Resolution Committing Matching Funds

TxDOT funding for New Infrastructure Projects in 2024/2025

Agenda Item 15.C. - Slide 5



Berth 9

Berth 6

Area 4

Area 5

Area 6

E. 5th Improvement

Gate 4 
Entrance

TxDOT Seaport Connectivity Grant Funded TxDOT Port Maritime Infrastructure Grant Funded

Future Port Expansion Projects

Agenda Item 15.C.  - Slide 7

Jug Handle Street Velasco Terminal Gate

Velasco Terminal 
Access CROSSDOCK

AREA



 

 

 

Addi�onal informa�on regarding agenda items will be provided next week in a supplemental pos�ng.  


	4 11 2024 Board WS Agenda.Final.pdf
	Agenda
	agenda signature.port commission.pdf
	PORT FREEPORT


	15.A. Safety Update - FINAL.pdf
	2024 Quarterly �Safety Update
	Back to Basics: 
	Monthly inspections:
	Daily Monitoring Gas Additive/Transfer line @ parcel 19: 
	Training �
	Meeting 
	Meetings New Tenants / Stevedores / Vendors: 
	Investigations and Unsafe Conditions
	Amports Sewer Lid�
	Chiquita Vessel Container Accident�
	Del Monte �Yard Construction 
	Safety: Current Projects�
	New Rescue container is operational!��All stevedores will be requested to receive training on use and safety protocols.�
	Dock 8 edge identification and prevention
	Non-TWIC parking lot Security Credentialing 
	Speed limits issue�20 MPH
	Parcel 19 Roadway
	Pete Schaff Blvd.                Turning Basin Rd
	Slide Number 19
	Gate 8 Dole Interchange creating Traffic Congestion: �Security can not turn OTR  trucks around, OTR trucks who need to rescale can not cross to WHS 51 to adjust tandems to come back to rescale, Dole trucks waiting on access to interchange must cross outbound traffic lane and trucks entering from Dole interchange must go around waiting trucks in center lane. �All unsafe conditions��Solution:�Drive located after CBP scanner and behind the scale house, former truck wash, is in direct line with the Dole Interchange; Trucks having to exit thru Dole Interchange only  will use this lane. This will remove trucks from the center lane causing congestion, safety and security issue. �
	Port Improvements:�All RR crossing on P-19 are clearly marked�
	Relocating signage for a better effect throughout the port.
	Safety Budget: 

	15.C. Capital Plan Update - FINAL (2).pdf
	Capital Plan Update
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5

	12.B. policies 3.4 CONFLICT OF INTEREST.current 2019.pdf
	Conflict of Interest EXHIBIT.A.pdf
	EXHIBIT “A”
	Acknowledgment and Acceptance





